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Characteristics of GEM £ ZE i = 45 4

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and
other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

A SEAR TS Joy e A e BB B 2 4 Rl R I BT T8 -
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Al 2 VEAE SR B o Sl A A S R R RE 2 B AR A
BUEE o A SEAR 8 R B B H A 4 € 2 R A1 3
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Corporate Structure 2\ =2%4%

54.76%

Investment Holding
wREZER

Investment Holding
REZR

Solutions Provider

BBIRTT =GR

EHRBAEFTE
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Services Provider
ARG AL FERS

RFID, Mobile & Wireless
SSEFAI - TREN R AR

Control & Automation Engineering

China Operation Arm
FE 5D AR

Investment Holding
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IR ER
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Financial Summary 4% % 2%

Group Results 7<% [H] 2 45

| |
! 2003 ! 2002
Yi E March #&« & —=H =+—H i3 It _
ear Ended 31 March # % =H =+ 1R R | —mp=ip | —zE
: HK$’000 : HK$’000
! Tt ! T o0
| |
| |
Turnover e ! 77,302 ! 62,849
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary MRBLET H #ERZ : :
activities before taxation (m18) /¥ Al | (21,381) | 5,138
Taxation Bl IH : 167 : 304
(Loss)/Profit attributable to JE R A | |
shareholders (E548) %5 F) : (21,214) : 4,834
Dividends i )5 : - : 2,724
| |
(Loss)/Earnings Per Share #: it (E#) & F
| |
R . ! 2003 ! 2002
Year Ended 31 March #% = H =+ —H IL4F )& | —mE=i | —mE i
| |
: cents : cents
| WAl | WAl
| |
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRI (BE1R) & F : (2.34) : 0.53
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 43 /B #EW (518) 2 A : (2.28) : 0.50

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share 75 i

Basic (loss)/earnings per share % B 3t

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss attributable to shareholders of HK$21,213,761 (2002:
profit of HK$4,833,880) and the weighted average of 907,759,068 ordinary shares (2002: 903,581,535 shares after
adjusting for the bonus issue in 2002) in issue during the year.

B BEEAR (B518) BRI TS 3% B AUEAG B 1E 21,213,761 70 (& 4 ¢

Ui 18) & F)

A (5 48) 7 F)

it F14,833,880 % I0)

£907,759,068 (ZFF —4F : 903,581,535 > BVt T E A 2 AL EEATAE i) A R -

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 45 i ## (& 18) & F)

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss attributable to shareholders of HK$21,213,761
(2002: profit of HK$4,833,880) and the weighted average of 930,321,740 ordinary shares (2002: 968,708,399 shares

» DARAE TR B BT R AR 2 P T- 249 e

after adjusting for the bonus issue in 2002) after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.

T BN (B 18) B A % e R REA G s 1821, 213,76 178 7T (B % 4R ¢
AR R AR 2 RT3 930,321,740 1% (ZFF 4T ¢

% 714,833,880 Jr) » i Ht T A T A 8 A A A 2 5
968,708,399/ » EL gk~ E A Z ALRCEATAE R AT
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Major Milestones and Events 2% HL 5 &% fii /i

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

Establishment of the Group

Development of technologies and applications

— Launched hardware products for smartcard system under the trademark of “HOMAC”

— Awarded with important smartcard and RFID projects in Hong Kong

Winning of 2000 HK Industry Award

— Listing on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
— Establishment of wholly owned PRC subsidiary: ITE (China) Limited in Shanghai
— Winning of 2001 HK Industry Award

— Acquisition of leading IT System Integrator, Quesco Holdings Limited and Quesco Systems

Limited on 7th December 2001

— Accreditation of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System
— Launched new ISO15693 product series and solutions

— Patent filing of ISO15693 based Smart Key Management System (SKMS) accepted by the State
Intellectual Property Office of the People’s Republic of China

— Awarded with the first ISO15693 Smartlabel project in Hong Kong

— Strategic Business Agreement signed with Shanghai Public Traffic Card Company Limited
(SPTCC) for the provision of value-added solutions and services to its user community

— Entered into distributor agreement with Texas Instruments for marketing, sales and support
of its product ranges

— Became the sub-issuer of MULTOS

Appointed as an international channel partner of Transcore, LP.
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It is our mission to enhance
life automation through the implementation
of Smartcard and RFID technologies.
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Chairman’s Statement & #4

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”),
I hereby present the annual results for ITE (Holdings) Limited
(“ITE” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2003.

Mission H 1%

The mission of the Group is to become the leading smartcard and
radio frequency identification (“RFID”) solution provider and
system integrator in the Asia Pacific region. ITE has been
pioneering smartcard system solutions and integration and has
been performing outstandingly in Hong Kong. With profound
expertise, strong research and development (“R&D”) capability,
proven track record and excellent reputation in the industry, the
Group has established a leading profile in the smartcard industry
in Hong Kong and has taken a proactive approach to introduce
innovative and customised smartcard and RFID applications to its
clients. Leveraging on its extensive industry experience, ITE is
developing smartcard and RFID solutions for clients from many
industries and expanding its business activities to the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and other countries in the Asia
Pacific region.

The meeting of the Board for the financial year ended 31 March 2003 was held on 11
June 2003.

WE FF=EZ = MR 2 R o ARE R EE A+ AT -

AR

ANERKRESG ((EFEIK[EFR] > REITE
(Holdings) Limited ([TTE] 5 [ 4/ 7] |) Kz H b} 2>
A (BRIALR) BE_FE=4F=H=+—H1
EERNREES -

AR E AR > 2 R HE K (86 ) 4R R S B
S AR T RO RE T S R AR o ITE — B2 &
BHER ARSI R LB TAER R > I — HREE
Roo ACSE HEA B0 - RO M B 5T % B % (TRF
1) ReN R RAFIAEAT > MR ER F RS - 1
7 v B AR R S A L SR A o A 1) P A A
W7 B BE B R IR BE R B R A R 7 SR o MR AR
AT A R BE R B R > ITESU) AR B AR RAT 1
% 5 PR B AR R B SE RO M Dy 5 SR A
RSN R ([ e ) e i A [k JEC Al R 5 4 Joe 2E 755

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Chief Executive Officer of the Group
introduced products of the Group to clients.

A AT B AR B S 1) B 5 A AR AR A L E i o
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Overview 1%

Stepping forward to professional management and quality
assurance, the Company’s subsidiaries, ITE Smartcard Solutions
Limited (“ITES”) and ITE Engineering Limited (“ITEE”), had
passed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System audit carried
out by BSI Management Systems Limited during the year. On 17
October 2002, both subsidiaries were accredited with ISO
9001:2000 Certification and within the timetable set forth in the
“Statement of Business Objectives” of our prospectus dated 15
February 2001 (the “Prospectus”) which is a clear reflection on the
uncompromising quality commitment of ITE. Another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Quesco Information Services
Limited (“QISL”) is currently initiating the implementation of a
Capability Management Module (“CMM”) set of practices that will
serve to compliment the existing information technology (“IT”)
quality standards and enhance the overall quality of service
provided to the clients. It is QISL’s target to achieve CMM Level 2
Certification by the 4th quarter of 2004. Besides the CMM’s
Certification, the Group will continue to maintain and improve
higher standard of management and quality control.

ERCTLTTET —

i

e s |
BerorE |

ITES and ITEE passed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance
System audit on 1 August 2002 and were accredited with ISO
9001:2000 certificates.

B RITEER ~F%F 4 /\H — H#E IS0 9001:2000 4 B 78 3 7 S 8%
i B A% IS0 9001:2000: i

By — 0 T B A I MR R OR RS > AR A I B
AR GABR AR (14 ]) XITE Engineering
Limited ([ITEE]) & j* 4F A % % BSI Management
Systems Limited f1I1SO 9oo1:2000/ & % H & 4
R, R ZFE 4+ A+ L H#EEEISO
9001:2000 & » BT T —FEX—4HF _H +H AR
BT (B EFE]) 510 A 2ERS HAE > I BITES
iR R BT R RS RS o A A 5 — A
A — HERHE AR A BRA A ([HERH &) TRIEFT
P — & e ) BUARR EERLAL (CMM) F & > Bl & 81
A 1 G AR B B i KT B £ 5 4R A R A 1
BB R o FERHE A LUR Z FZ P AE S Y ZE IS CMM
THGEES HAE o B T CMMEE AL o A [ R
DR 37 AS BT B35 3 /KT 1 45 B R R R

Being accredited with ISO 9001:2000 certificates by BSI
Management Systems Limited, ITES and ITEE would strive
for continuous professional management and quality
assurance.

¥ M ITEEMEBSI Management Systems Limited 5 #1SO 9001:2000i#
o M RRATE SR BT I R R R o



Oxfam Hong Kong presented ITES with souvenir for ITE’s sponsorship
in the international fund-raising event, Trailwalker 2002.

48 1 R P 0 R R ) — 34T 20020 HBTUR AL  -

Caring about the community, the Group has participated in
serving the community during the year. The Group sponsored the
international fund-raising event, Trailwalker 2002 through the
provision of an ISO15693 RFID Smartlabel Tracking System and
related project management and training services. On 5 December
2002, The Hong Kong Council of Social Service presented ITES
with the Caring Company Award for its good corporate citizenship.
The Group will continue to play an active role in serving the
community.

Appreciation Z

I would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest thanks
to my directors, management and staff for their dedication and
hard work, and shareholders, financiers and business partners for
their continual support.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 June 2003

ITES was presented with the Caring Company
Award by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for its good corporate citizenship.

B P A i R T BN R R R B AR > DRI
o~ RARFEZ B -

N ALEEBOLE > B2 RS TEA GRS o A
A2 19 7 By I PR B T ) — B AT % 2002 > Ay IS B4R AL
1SO15693 5 JH ik FIl & REAR S0 Mt R 4 - AHBHIE A &
R IEINRGS o BBEER _FF_F+ 1 1 HEE
B WA RS Bt G AEIY [ A R B A, - AR
AR ERGH o A B R R B ALE -

ANEFREH S - MEFGMLE - FHE XA T
T Hh B9 SR 55 T3 > DA R BRI 85 1
FEHAK A — E AR SR > BOARVIR W -

EV
B

Fib  “FF=GAA T H
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Management Discussion and Analysis 4 8 g & 5 & 53 4

Business Review 2 %5 0] J&H

Strategic Development 3 i 1 %% f2

Within the huge PRC market, the Group has paid great effort on
its business expansion. In March 2003, Quesco (Holdings)
Limited (“QHL”) had decided to establish a new software
development center, HF}#k ¢ (Zk i) A FR /A ], in Zhuhai, PRC.
The primary function of the software development center will be
to provide high-level cost effective production of our software
application solutions while maintaining the high quality standards
of our developed software products. It will also conduct R&D
programs for the development of specific software tools and
applications. We are confident that the software development
center will maximise professional service delivery capabilities
while significantly enhancing the time management and cost
effective production of software deliverables to our clients. To be
located in Tsinghua Science Park (the “Park”), the software
development center will receive priority support from the Zhuhai
National New and Hi-Tech Development Zone while being
benefited from the Park’s accommodation, education, conference
and business communication facilities.

As a move to streamline the business nature and activities of QSL,
the Board has decided to make a strategic internal restructuring
by transferring the entire IT Professional Services Division to
another subsidiary of the Company, Quesco Information Services
Limited (formerly known as Nat-Id Limited) (“QISL”) starting on
1 April 2003. The division functions, operations, management and
personnel remain the same under QISL. The purpose of the
restructure is to consolidate the internal areas of expertise of both
QSL and QISL (together with QHL, the “Quesco”) and to enhance
the specific services provided by the IT Professional Services
Division. Upon completion, QSL will continue to focus on the

provision of contract and recruitment services to clients.

To leverage on the booming real estate market in the PRC, the
Group’s PRC operation subsidiary, | i Bl 34K % #8 R 55 A FRA #
(ITE (China) Limited, “ITEC”) made an investment of
approximately three million Hong Kong Dollars in the leading real
estate system integrator in Shanghai, I ¥ %E %% GE R} £ 4 BR 2> 7,
in the final quarter of fiscal year of 2003. It is expected that this
vertical integration along smartcard value-added chain can create
further business strategy within our PRC development roadmap.

ARAEE B A RER B B T SRR o R F
=4 =H > Quesco (Holdings) Limited ([HEF}#%
J& 1) B B v I8 Bk T T B B A B R0 —
BRI (RE) ABRA A o B RO £
HE > T A FAM 0 s IR R 8 R Ak i AR A A 1 A
FE o [ IRF PR 47 O B B H0CAR 2 5 1) R LR iR
A A AR L R R R Y B ROEAT IS - R IR
15 > B4R GRS rpt i AT 2 20 A 1) B3 P BH 5 e
T A RN B &P B A E R A
F14 Iy [H) 487 B B AR 04 o A B v O R B T B T
THAERHE FE (TR D) - (S B 5% 0 1= R Al
Wi IR > WA AR EENZ S HE g
E VORI E e

R EGERL R SR A RA A (THER R &) 2B ME
PGB S W R v TARSE > RO ER =
FTEZAENA — HET RN EA - R EE
al\ B 35 B0 S M sl 2 AR ) S 2 R J 4 R — B
B AR A R A (THERH ) (A A Nat-ID
Limited) #SVEE - A8 A 2 haE - EAE - EH
B NEAs AR A - ML B/ > TR EHER AN
BeERL R (BRLBERL 2 i A HERL]) Pl i B
W > 0o R 3 B 0 T £ 8 A 8 ]
T o SERI RGN BRE D B E P RS LES XiF
AR -

P o I 5 M T 0 A U B S o AN TR R
WhF S 2> ) — b it By SR R A R A R (T il ol
AR B & = WA B AR — Z AR i R
T 355 SR M o 2 5 4t E 555 TE AR AT A P — b i A A
BHRBNARAF > RAGEN =0 EEN - E5
& I e R I E SRR AE ) S DR o e R BT Y
T B B i B [ B 4 O 2 SE 5 SR



During the year, the Group has been actively forming commercial
alliances with certain smartcard and RFID related business
partners and semiconductor manufacturers including the
worldwide leading vehicle tagging technology company, Transcore
LP, the leading semiconductor manufacturers, Infineon
Technologies AG (Germany) and Texas Instruments (USA), the
handheld RFID device producer, Datalogic AB (Sweden), the
largest PDA manufacturer in the PRC, the Beijing Hi-Tech Wealth
Electronic Product Company Limited and the MULTOS technology
vendor, Keycorp Limited (Australia).

R A BRI IR 22 5 RE R A kA A B
B SETS AR AE Je b B A v N P T i A
TR 48 51 B #2248 457 97 23 W] Transcore, LP ~ i 2 25
A 2 T B ELAEE b 47 19 7% ] Infineon Technologies,
AG }% 3% [ Texas Instruments -2 51 8 ik 7l 25 #1 2&
JEE 7% g . Datalogic AB ~ i K% B E AL
ROV HE AR 2E T i A PR B B MULTOSH T #4 B
7 1918 M Keycorp Limited °

Sales and Marketing Activities &Y £ & 11 55 # & 3% 8

During the year, ITEC commissioned the Shanghai Public Traffic
Card based public parking payment system for the Shanghai Grand
Gateway and several access control systems for real estates. ITEC
entered into a contract to supply a PRC government bureau with a
Hitag based tagging and automated gas filing system, which is the
first pilot system of this kind in the Mainland China.

The Group has continued to strengthen its sales and marketing
force. The Group has paid more effort in tendering for important
and sizeable projects and has approached potential IT, smartcard
and RFID based solution users. ITES has been aggressively
preparing for the tendering of a sizeable government project, the
automated passenger and vehicle clearance systems, the tender
document was issued on 30 May 2003 and the result of award will
be announced before the end of 2003.

Kicking off into the transportation and fleet management market,
ITES has completed the first smartlabel based fleet management
system and delivered to our client, the Kowloon Motor Bus
Corporation. The system, built on the latest ISO15693 technology,
is the first commercial application launched in Hong Kong. In
parallel, ITES is actively marketing the technology and
applications to logistics and asset management markets.

Within the campus market, the Group has maintained stable sales
in local market and started its geographical expansion in Macau
Special Administrative Region, China (“Macau”). In January 2003,
ITES commissioned its first smartcard project for the University
of Macau (“UMAC”), which covers an access control system, an e-
purse system for photocopying and add-value machine using the
existing Mifare smartcard of the UMAC. Recognising the business
potential of Macau, the Group is actively working with UMAC for
further development in its smartcard system while marketing its
products and services to other tertiary institutions, government
departments and private sectors.

AEIAL B SR A 9 B R 35 57 DA B i A
FRAEBKASMFHERE RS > I A2 WERE
SR SE PR FE ) R AT o b ¥ B S AR IR BUAT: o B B
PTG A > SR 4RI Hitag 7 S8R0 7 TR 4R AR
FEAE BB AL - TP R R A R AT

A% 55 T 55 A0 56 L B 4 T 5 4 I AR > SO B
B B T KRB TRE R 5 40 > S 12 A LA RRH -
BER RERIR IR A AT RBENF - B IEF )
F— R BUF TR — k% A W ABIE R K
U (R %) B B A SRR A R AT Y R AT HE A T
16> MBEHER —FE =240 =+ H#m - &
BEAERAMR T F =FFRA -

BRI AT N B RS T > BRI K
— JUHE B A R A 58 i R DA R K 2 AR B
A RS - RHLERHFTINISO15693F i AL > T
F s A S R MR R R R o B IERE AR
1) 490 ik 5 40 o L TR 5 4 R il B T Y

R TG0 o AR ER AT G R R
SO S5 R 2 o R R AT B (MR D)
PR T = A E WA PTR S BB R
RHTAE > 450 % A2 A Mifare® 68 19 1
AR R A B B EN M - I (e B PR BT SR D RE A9 TR
TEARL o MNP B ET B RG> ALk
M IERR M LR PR RS AR - E— S BRR R A
0 o [l B o R PR A DR S e A~ SBOURT o 1 B AL 7
A B i B IR
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During the year, Quesco undertook a system integration project
for Goldjoy Shopping Paradise. Engaged as the prime systems
integrator, Quesco helps the shopping arcade in the
implementation of the structural cabling, network equipment,
computer hardware and peripherals, and a suite of business
support software applications. The project is expected to be
completed by June 2003. Quesco is also in the final negotiation
stage with a government department of HKSAR on a large scale
application development project. The contract is expected to be
concluded before the end of July 2003.

Besides, the Company’s subsidiary, RF Tech Limited (“RFT”), had
exhibited its latest RFID technology in the Information
Infrastructure Expo and Conference 2003 held in February.
Different kinds of smartcard and smartlabel based systems and
products were shown. More than 200 visitors, clients and partners
had visited our booth and shown interests in the new technologies
and product lines. ITES also partnered with Junghans Uhren
GmbH to exhibit the Octopus Smart Access Control and Turnstile
System in the Hong Kong Watch & Clock Fair 2002.

Research and Development #f 78 J BH %%

The Group has continued to invest in R&D through its product arm
RFT and developed new application systems based on various
smartcard and RFID technologies.

In August 2002, the Smart Key Management System (“SKMS”),
Smart Keybox and Smart Keytag based on the latest RFID and
I1SO15693 smartlabel technology were launched. To protect this
intellectual property right, a patent for the system was filed to the
State Patent Office in Beijing with the application preliminarily
approved.

New reader series, application modules, evaluation kits, terminals
and several prototype contactless WinCE PDA readers based on
1SO14443 Type A Mifare, ISO15693 and Hitag technologies were
launched. New E-payment System and Automated Passenger
Management System were also developed.

N FERLR R G R A R B R SRR T
e o A2 RATAERT > SERL 2 W0 76 35 B M 5 5 A
B PROLAAE AL - BISEE AT - RS R S
WEAFHER > THHHFHR —F T ZFARNHEM - 8
1] BRF: B 7 i o i ST 7 f — JEL K Y 6 ) B g T
e BUIE RN mAR i at P B - SRTFNIR %% =
-0 A JERTA &R -

Besh > A RIFHE A "] — RF Tech Limited ([RFT)
R H A E L@ o003 8 & I 5 40
A AT o A S TR R BE R SR BEAR R R SR
mo Z2BNEIE - FF RIKEEEZER AR - i
A 36 S5 T 00 B O B A o ARk LR o R HE R B
Junghans Uhren GmbH& 1 » JA % i £ % e 2002
JR R ER R IR -

A S ) 55 025 8 L BT 8 % /L E AR RFTHA B 3%
7 T B BRI AR A 2 R R RE S % S R 45
B 5% 55 1) B 1) 2R A0 2 i R B o

TRT AN ARG AE DL ORI S A 4
i B2 1SO15693 8 BE R FR 7 il /7 A 1 % RE AL A% L &
A~ B RESR LA SR T ER AR AL o J ORI L Rl
> AEHMOMABR IR FERN - HEERCE
B 2% i 2 R J) 52 B o

PAIS014443 Type A Mifare ~ 1S015693 K Hitag#% i
AR R A - FERA - & MBS - &
vy 1 I IF $: B A WIinCE# B IS F A O d o
18 1A 2 K R 7% At T A R SN B e



Future Prospect & &

During the year, the Group was operating in a very difficult market
environment and the shake-out of the competition in the
smartcard and IT markets is still in full swing. The recent outbreak
of the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”) is expected to
further drive down the economy in Hong Kong with numerous
industries which we serve contracting. As the SARS continues to
cause widespread destruction in Hong Kong as well as the
Mainland China, the Board estimates that demand on
sophisticated multi-applications smartcard solutions by local and
Asian clients will remain low.

Despite the difficult market environment, we have initiated a
series of consolidation and restructuring measures to achieve cost
reductions and to accelerate the synergies and integration of
subsidiaries, the Board is confident that the Group is moving in
the right direction, and will continue its active approach to
promote new technology and solutions to large sized organisations
to maintain stable income. For the fiscal year of 2004, we expect
business to develop better than 2003.

AR AR IR TR JF R B T S5 BR B R AR >
AE R S B RHURH T 5 1 30 S AN o Bl AR B
ML A 58 o FHFEHR S B PE LA RS
AL TRAM 09 A 5 B S AE A £ (R 4T 36 B IEAE %
A o by P I MY i 2R 4 AR A i B o R S o B
R E o g AR R N B A 2
B RE R I R R RS

94 T S5 M A L D A — o 8 B A
MG BB AR - R A 23 9 B I 8
Jy o EHEL - AR TT IR - 4
O 151 A ) BN AT 34 7 307 % DR B 2
WA o TR B % % D4R R AT BE 9 35 SR
B = -
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Financial Performance 7% 3% 3

For the year ended 31 March 2003, the Group recorded a total BEFLZ=F=H =T —HIEEE » AL A
revenue of HK$77,301,806, representing an increase of 23% over WA 577,301,806 JG » B X AR R HH L Ft23% o A
last year. Loss attributable to the shareholders for the year ended FEORRCAESH S — AR RO R
31 March 2003 was HK$21,213,761 as compared to a profit of 21,213,761 76 > K A [ B A R A

HK$4,833,880 for the last year.

Turnover Breakdown by Main Business Segments

4,833,880 7T ©

(LB S S 5 i 2

2003
21%
60% Consultancy fee
e Rl 2
1% 15% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
= BRERRA - FIEHRLA B B IR
3% Provision of maintenance services
PR TS
60%
15% 1% Sales of service related products
B IR A5 A B 2
21% Electrical and mechanical installation
7 TR
2002
22%
25%
25% Consultancy fee
- dif]
% 51% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
9% BRER RS SRR A B IR
1% Provision of maintenance services
PR R s
1% Sales of service related products
i85 IR A5 A I 2
22% Electrical and mechanical installation
51% %%ﬁ%]:?@
There is a substantial decrease in the gross profit margin for the RN BB R TS IR AE TR R A b e S D
year under review as the new subsidiary’s turnover consolidated Z SR > KE AR B A s R BUR I AR
during the year included quite a large portion generating out of IT BLRESN RS o A R B SR B A 2 75 >
professional secondment business to the HKSAR government. It AL AN ERE B T o BRAb > o RN
is a low risk business with low profit margin, hence, dragging down Eal R R e R LR 2 AR AR TR E AR o

the Group’s gross profit margin for the year. Besides, bidding costs

of some sizeable IT and smartcard projects have been written off.



In addition, private sector is investing less money in their IT
infrastructure and competition in the industry is getting keen
during the current slow economy. Pricing has to be adjusted to a
lower level so as to maintain the Group’s competitiveness,
therefore, leading a lower gross profit margin.

The Group has set a new strategy to target for the government IT
projects, going for bigger projects with longer duration time, while
marketing smaller size projects for the commercial sector at the
same time. The Group are currently exploring new revenue stream
including expansion of our business in executive search division,
explore of new market in Macau and further business development
in Shanghai.

With the consolidation of whole financial year of QHL, the revenue
percentage of consultancy fee income has increased significantly.
The continual local economic slowdown compounded with
competition within the smartcard and information technology
industries have severely impacted the profit margins and hit the
Group a historic loss result. Nonetheless, the Directors are
confident that the restructuring exercises and business focus swap
made during the year will turn the Group around, it expects that
the business will develop better in 2004.

Segmental Information 43 & 5l

For the smartcard systems services segment, private sector is
investing less and less money on their IT infrastructure. The
dropping demand of sophisticated smartcard system leads to a
decrease in the turnover compared with that of the same period in
2002. Besides, severe competition is pushing down the gross profit
margin significantly. Currently the Group has reserved resources
to bid for sizeable IT projects of government and other public
sectors while marketing smaller projects among private sector at
the same time. The Group is also devoting considerable resources
to develop new applications markets and trying our best to chinch
new clients and contracts.

For consultancy service segment, the revenue stream and margin
will remain rather stable. Optimistically, the Directors believe that
there will be a large sum of accounts receivable with longer credit
period.

For electrical and mechanical installation segment, most of the
contracts signed in previous years are being implemented and
completed in the current year, hence, leading to a 15% increase in
turnover comparing with that of the same period in 2002.
However, its business nature is considered to be longer credit
period. Therefore, the Group will be very cautious in bidding new
contracts of this kind and may slow it down in the future.

BRAN > 55 M AE BRI T > R BR B AR
FERBA B SR > AT 3 B TR B
U AR B REEHBT T S ER T K
BB TR -

A SR B LS ST R R o 3 ORORR AR T R IR R 1Y
BON EARHEIE B - (7] I @ 76 5 R /N 1 JH
F o A 52 P AE B B B U AR U - B4 B R AT BN
B RED - R Y @R 35 Kot B fRgE—2
HH R o

B2 P AR — BB B O T B S AR - (R R AR
5 2 B WA AR AN 1 70 I BRI o Rp A 5 Y A
o AL B R R R B BCE AN B R
MEAEBNB A - 51208 - fEm > #
AR AR R S RS B R A A
LR H RS > ERFMAEBPR T FFER
SETS BRI A

BRE R RAUIRTS Iy o FL A R R AR B R
BA R E Bt o Ty LB MR RE R R AN
ok HE R R 51O F 8 B T T AR A
TR o BUAN > WA T8 BB A KR R R o A
A 190 Ak 45 0 DR A s R B IBEA e 36 M T URH 4
AR > (7] By ) AL B AR A SR BN 2 TR o
A SR B IE BEA KB B IR B R I E R T8 > BN
BB G #

LI MR A5 7 T > WA BIE TR % 2 R R A HE R E o
GG > RS & b BRI (5 = i R TR
IH o

WELREZE T - BEEFCETHN LRESGHE
HHidr g T WEEEE - FE _FR A
15% o M H S B 2 o iR WY WG > AR 45 DI
AR [7] S5 Y 5 4 B IRy 5H S I AR > B80T el D ik
P TR SR -
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The Group is currently exploring new business streams to generate
higher profits for shareholders. R & D investment has been
increased during the past 6 months in order to invent and develop
new products, aiming at creating new revenue stream from the
trading and sales of these product lines.

Besides, QISL is involved actively in software application
development for private and public sectors. This would become a
new business segment in the Group, therefore, generating new

revenue.

A T IE 490 (0507 B ZETE R > LA SR 2 T SR A 2 o g (]
oo WENMAA > ARG Oy R Bk
WA T B EERTBO E h o BTEIE R LS I S B
B B HE BT B AR o

BRoh > SERLE AIE AR M 4% A FA 8 B 20 8 B A 1O R 1
PHEE - Sl s A 4R BT ) S8 0 AT > Sl A8 T A i
NS o

Liquidity and Financial Resources & 4: i B 1t & B B & I

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally
generated cash flows and bank borrowings. During the year, a
short-term loan of HK$4,552,211 bore interest of 5.5% per annum
and an installment loan HK$5,000,000 bore interest of 5% per
annum were drawn down from banks, which were applied as
general working capital of the Group’s business operations. The
installation loan will be repaid by monthly installation over three
years. At 31 March 2003, the current ratio of the Group was 2.15
(2002: 3.24) while the liquidity ratio was 1.97 (2002: 3.06).

Taking into consideration the banking facilities granted and the
existing financial resources available to the Group, it is believed
that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet
its operation, development requirements and investments in the

future.

Capital Structure & 7< 4% #%

The Group continues to adopt a conservative treasury policy with
all bank deposits in either Hong Kong Dollars, or in the local
currencies of the operating subsidiaries, keeping minimum
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The Group’s liquidity and

financing arrangements are reviewed regularly.

Significant Investments | K#%&

The Group had no significant investments during the year under

review.

A [ BT DA A A 2 B A i i B R AT A
BT o N - AR B SRATIE B T AR IR S
5.5% 1 4,552,211 JC 2 48 1 68 5K K AR I R B 5% 1)
5,000,000 TG 2 A HHEEAE 2 H W B & 4 o Ik
SR O g ML AR X =R o AREER
FEZFZH =T —HRZRE L% a5 (CEE
TAF 3.24) > MURENB & ERA 197 (EFE
1 3.06) °

T 5 B8 SR AT A B A 42 B BUA AT B 2 W R
% AREARE R 2 B BRI AR 2
o B LB

A S [ A AR O AR B UK o P A SRAT AR
T T B A o W AL R B > DUBRR AT R R B o
A T A U B e R B

SR B A A S A AT R -

Material Acquisitions or Disposal of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

TR = WO B B S 4 W] % B e o W) 2 H

During the year under review, the Group had no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

A B [0 7 4 7R S0 952 A A AR A o R T 2 R
Tk i s W) 2 A o



Employment Information & 8 & ¥l

At 31 March 2003, the Group had 200 full-time employees of
which 183 are based in Hong Kong and the rest are in the PRC.
The salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees are kept at
a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus systems, which is reviewed annually. Staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, was approximately HK$60
million for the year ended 31 March 2003. Besides, the Company
has also introduced share option schemes to recognise the
contributions of the employees to the growth of the Group. The
schemes have been or will be amended from time to time to take
into account changes in market conditions and the GEM Listing
Rules.

Charges on Group Assets % & i ic

At 31 March 2003, time deposits of HK$13,511,368 (2002:
HK$9,394,828) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities of the Group.

AR —RFZAEZH =+ — HIE A 2008 2B
fE 8 - Hrh 451834 A& UEE 8 - HARH 5 B §
B o ARALEMRE B 2 3 4 KARFKFH 2% 5] ) - i
AR PR AS A [ 2 37 4 Je A1 M) ) B BLAR B 2 SR BN
BRMESFERT K  _EF=4F=A=1+—
H o> G045 <6 72 N 9 A B LA % %5 60,000,000
WG o BAh > AN HE L EIREST R > IR
B AR B R TR 2 EURE - A BB 2 AR S A
JRE T 355 15 D sk AL B S L i R R A AT

M oFEE=AF=ZH=+—H > H#13,511,368% T
(CFE 4 1 9,394,828 50) Z BT E KT
$RAT > FEREREEWE AR 245 THRITRUE o

Future Plans for Material Investments H & = H K # & 5 #

Other than those disclosed in the Prospectus under the section
headed “Business Objectives Review”, the Group did not have any
plans for material investment and acquisition of material capital
assets as at 31 March 2003.

Gearing Ratio & & £ 1 [k ¥

At 31 March 2003, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is
calculated as the ratio of total secured bank loans due after one
year to shareholders’ funds, was 0.06 (2002: Nil).

BRIA B EE R A [0 B AR ) — i B dl R ot > A dE
M R =F = =+ — AT E R TR
W E R EA G E 2 ] o

A 2 G E A HE R T4 R R y‘l‘? DA SR
BEezANl - RFF=F=A=Z1+—H &%
MeBEERREES0.06 (“EFE A )

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Any Related Hedges

¥ 3% 5 Bl Jl B J% AT 4nT AH B 2 o

Most of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. As the
exchange rate of Renminbi is fairly stable during the year under
review, the exchange rate risks of the Group were considered to be
minimal. At 31 March 2003, no related hedges were made by the
Group.

Contingent Liability =k4k f1 1&

At 31 March 2003, the Company had undertaken to guarantee
certain banking facilities granted to two wholly-owned subsidiary
to the extent of HK$32 million (2002: HK$31 million).

A F R A 3 45 e A B B BT LA T e N R R
Hoo MR NRH LT 2 SRR NABTRE - i
A SR B WAL A W KT 2 RE R R B o R R F
ZEZAEtH > ARG AR AT A B
G

MOEE=ZAE=ZA=+—H > A2 55k W E 4 & #
J& N T 2 # T SR AT R T $E It 4 532,000,000 T
(CEE 4F ¢ 31,000,000 T0) ZIEE -
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Business Objectives Review % H 12 [5] i

In compliance with the rules of the GEM of the Exchange, ITE presents a summary of actual business progress as measured

against the business objectives set out in the Prospectus for the period from the latest practicable date of the Prospectus to

31 March 2003.

ITE%H”%‘%%ﬁ/‘“%wﬁﬁﬁ/\jzfﬁﬂz BHMAARERRERRAITHSE 2 FF ===+ —HIEBMZ EBE

TR > 3 R A A P 2 SR B ARAR A

Comparison of Objectives
and Actual Business Progress

Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BEEETREE —FF=F=A =+ A ZEFAE

Key Business Initiatives 3= 22 3 7% 51 #1

a. Identify opportunities for smartcard applications
targeted to public and private sector users in Hong
Kong
Yy e R T o RS b - R SR AU S T S A IR S
WHEE

b. Identify opportunities for smartcard applications
targeted to public and private sector users in the Asia
Pacific region
W e REMARR - B S SE K b= A F R FAE
R %5 ) R P

P BB B S 0 e 2 LU

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

WERRZFA =+ AZHBERER

The Group has continued to identify opportunities for
smartcard applications targeted to public and private
sectors. For opportunities identified, the marketing team
has successfully promoted some new application systems
like fleet and logistics management, loyalty scheme and
network security management to private and public
sectors. During the year, the sales and marketing team
has also exhibited its new RFID and Octopus Smart
Access applications in the Information Infrastructure
Expo and Conference 2003 and the Hong Kong Watch &
Clock Fair 2002 through which a number of potential
clients have been identified and follow-up works are
undergoing.

A 4R B4R U A v S BORL MR 88 e R E E"Jﬁ’ﬂ‘%ﬁ ©
7 55 AT & B ) 1o 28 R R 7 A A B B K B it 5 BB~ T
B wh B R A R TG R 4L o SR ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ?%
2 B BT 75 U Al S 22 1 B 20 03 I 7y ik S 8% R 2002 % i
T I S kA B\ R RE AR R AR O & WM OR &
HYEE % - AR A TAEB AT T o

The Group has continued to identify opportunities for
smartcard applications targeted to public and private
sectors in the Asia Pacific region. The Group has
successfully expanded its business to Macau and
completed two projects for the UMAC and a government
bureau.

7 45 B4 AR B K 3 1 0 P B FA 8 IR R P T 35 TN ) 6 g
R P T M o S AR [ BTl A IR P A S R T - I 2 o R
TE 7 LT DR B e — IR B 0 P B F AR -



Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FE_F ] = HZER AR

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BEEZ=F=H=T—HZEBEGER

Key Business Initiatives (continued) = 2% 3 % 5t # (4)

c¢. Promote smartcard solutions to large to medium sized
corporations

fe] F R 2 R R A S R BE R T R

d. Promote smartcard solutions to medium to small
sized corporations in Hong Kong

16 5 % 114 o /DN A AR R e R T R

The Group has initiated marketing campaigns targeting
large to medium sized corporations like ports and
terminals, department and retail chain stores to promote
smartcard solutions. Campaigns during the year included
exhibitions in the Hong Kong Watch and Clock Fair 2002,
Information Infrastructure Expo and Conference 2003
and mass mailing of presentation materials to a number
of potential clients.

AR B R BA T 5 e T o ARSI R B L HEA
Al EPH TR A B R R R R TR o AFIN
T35 4 B 16 ) B0 5 B Wb 6k R 2002 ~ Fr il VR 52003
YALE PR AR SRR 97/ € §-g a0

The Group has continued to devote sales effort to promote
smartcard solutions to medium to small sized
corporations. Marketing campaign includes exhibitions in
the Hong Kong Watch and Clock Fair 2002 and
Information Infrastructure Expo and Conference 2003.
New website of the Group has been constructed to
support internet based promotion and sales enquiry.

A B2 1 R A 7S 8 B I AE 5 TG AR - 1) o /N A S A R R
HE R 758 o Tl 35 40 16 05 ) (0 43% 75 ViR S8 6% R 20 02 0 A7 Uk T Al
#2003 o AL EAEINC S8R > PASCHRE B A E 4
i B 85 At -
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Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FEF =+ HZER AR

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BE _EF=ZF=ZHA = — H 2 BB EG R

Key Business Initiatives (continued) = 2% 3 % 5t # (&)

e. Commence negotiation to smartcard services provider
business in other countries in the Asia Pacific region

At B K [ JFCA [ 5% F) R R S 55 3L BB 78 S 5 Je B ok i

f. Launch smartcard based e-commerce, ASP and ERP
applications
M BE R E TR RS L v 2 A 35 SR AL
JFE

g. Commence commercial negotiation relating to
smartcard project for mass transportation systems in
the Asia Pacific region

L B R i s 2R 25 o AR A5 ) R RE S T R R S R

The Group has continued to discuss and negotiate with
smartcard services provider business in the PRC. During
the year, further business cooperation has been initiated
with the Shanghai Public Traffic Card Corporation on the
provisions of value-added solutions and services related
to the e-purse environment. The Group has continued to
solicit interests of other traffic card operators in the PRC
on similar cooperation. Agreements with Keycorp Limited
in Australia as the sub-issuer of MULTOS and with
Transcore, LP as its international channel partner have
been signed.

7 42 (3] 4 20 B v B 1 IS IR AR R T A A T A T AR -
TR A BB i 3 S A0 R R A PR A R E— 22 S AF - L T
80 1 T R G (B 5 58 S IR TS o A A I e A L o A 2 32
RACE R SOR R A1 o A8 82 [ 75 BLIR U ¥ Keycorp Limited
7Rk > AU MULTOSHI #8177 > ilff Bl Transcore, LP#E A
FEAK A B e o

Due to dropping in demand for sophisticated
applications, the Group has suspended the launch of
smartcard based e-commerce, ASP and ERP applications.
Further decision will be made when there is increase in
the demand for smartcard based e-commerce, ASP and
ERP applications.

HY 7 T35 35 6 R R~ PR IR A R T e A S U R ) S5 R
W E R TR FR AT Bk - AR B AR AR B SRR - A B AR OK
T AR RE -

The Group has commenced negotiation relating to
smartcard project for mass transportation system in the
PRC and Taiwan during the year. As at the date hereof,
no agreement has been reached.

AR - SR Tk b B K & i R LR R SR e RIE H R
PARER > B BURE - R A 2 UL A 1 g o



Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FE_F ] = HZER AR

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BEEZ=F=H=T—HZEBEGER

Key Business Initiatives (continued) = 2% 3 % 5t # (4)

h. Apply for approvals by relevant financial institutions
for Group’s smartcard solutions

1] A ) <5 Pl AR A A A 4 T 1) B BB S D % R R AL X

i. Explore opportunities to acquire or form alliances
with companies providing synergies and technological
support
) 0 ST R A b ) i il = 47 ) ) s B R A8 S e L )
1

Since the market in financial sector has been contracting,
the plan to develop smartcard solutions for financial
institutions has been suspended. Further decision will
wait until the recovery of the financial industry.

P A il T O R A o AN AR B TR (5 R B R A AT TR T
HE RS e Ml SEM #Ry AR E -

The Group has signed several strategic business and
technical agreements with companies including Beijing
Hi-Tech Wealth Electronic Product Co. Ltd. (PRC),
Infineon Technologies AG (Germany), Texas Instruments
(USA), Keycorp Limited (Australia) and Transcore, LP
(USA) during the year. The Group is continuing to explore
opportunities to form alliances with other companies
actively.

AR > 7 A T R BT A ) R R OR S % R Al B - H
A EEEETEMARAA (FE) - Infineon
Technologies AG (f2[5) ~ @i & #%A 7 (£8]) - Keycorp
Limited G #) & Transcore, LP (F5[8) o 74 [ IF £ 45 % i
Wy 8 B A 3 W) &5 R B 2 B o
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Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FEF =+ HZER AR

Sales and marketing &4 £ & 11 &5 i &

a. Intensive marketing efforts in the United States to
promote smartcard and RFID related applications
B S BUEAT T 5 AR B - DA B AR R T A kB A
FAAH B e T

b. Promote smartcard application in service industry
such as tourism and retail

16 R 5 A7 SR HHE o A B S T A o 3 e B 3

c¢. Promote smartcard based loyalty programme

HE B RE R & 5 L G #

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BE _EF=ZF=ZHA = — H 2 BB EG R

Due to uncertainty about the United States market and
limited resources, the Group has stopped its marketing
efforts to promote smartcard and RFID related
applications in the United States. Further decision on
marketing efforts will be made when there is significant
improvement in the Group resources. The Group is
currently focusing marketing efforts and resources to
Macau, the PRC and other Asia Pacific countries.

HY 7 35 B 7l 35 AN W B R A R R A BR - AR SR A5 IR R 35
VR 4 JBE 8 IS B S Ak L 5 00 £ A B R e A A B R IR
T A W B 5 7 PR TR E o 4R [ B R M 4 rp R IR ~ op
T 55 R [0 Al [0 K A8 U B AT R o

The Group has been actively promoting smartcard and
smartlabel application in service industry especially in
tourism industry. During the year, the Group has
promoted its smartcard application to Goldjoy Shopping
Paradise from which our subsidiary, Quesco, has
successfully undertaken an IT system integration project.
The project covered the implementation of structural
cabling, network equipment, computer hardware and
peripherals, and a suite of business support software
applications.

7S B2 1 A i 1) JIR 5 ¥ 4 B g R S AR AR AR R T > HC b DUIR
e S S L SR EE G o AR AR BRI 1) 4 1 1B A 4B L RE R
FEF o 7 B2 B B a5 2 ) — BERL B2 S & 0 R ) R 4
B RFER LRAH - LRAKEEmRL S MR - 245
PEEEAE - SRR R - FRB A S S S T B R o

The Group has been actively promoting smartcard based
loyalty programme to the retail market. Since the
economy is undergoing a difficult stage and smartcard
based loyalty programme investment is contracting, no
sales agreements have yet been made.

A A [T £ A A 1) 55 T 5 4 B DA A R BT A A 1 & 5 R
whE o ph A TG BR B AR o TR AR R 2% P ARG B IR
TEZEM > U E A KA 2 BUT ] 65 &5 1k



Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FE_F ] = HZER AR

Geographical expansion 35 % 2

a. Set up branch offices or other form of presences in
other countries in the Asia Pacific region
TE 55 R b 1 P9 JFAt I 5% % S 4 i o D ke DA At Dy ot i 2
b7

b. Promote solutions for smartcard services provider
business in the Greater China Region

TR F 2 i 6 4 i R E R MRS 34 B i s

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BEEZ=F=H=T—HZEBEGER

Besides our Shanghai branch office, the Board has
decided to set up a wholly owned subsidiary, $E&}k ¢ (Zk
) 4 FR/2 7], in Zhuhai, PRC. The new subsidiary will
focus on the research and development of software,
enterprise resource management solutions, government
system software and related products which are supposed
to be sold in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas. Due to
uncertainty of the economic condition in the Asia Pacific
region and limited resources of the Group, no branch
offices have been set up so far except in the PRC. The
Group is seeking other form of presence in the Asia Pacific
region.

BT g R R A o B R O bk A v I B L 4
N E) — SERHEAE (BRI A PR A o B MSL 22 B & 2> m) A LAWF
BERRME - R EEVRE I TR BN AR SRR O B E 2
s B > AR MO S B - B ROFSh o A K R AR
TR I 5 1 A Y B S A A T IR A B - 3 A AR T ) A S b [
AL A S o A B [ IE SR HC Al Oy 3O BR OK 4 [ 4 i 3
o

The Group has continued promoting solutions for
smartcard services provider business in the Greater China
Region. Our subsidiary, ITEC has successfully built up
business relation with Shanghai Public Traffic Card
Company Limited (“SPTCC”). Several Shanghai Public
Traffic Card based parking and access control systems
have been implemented.

S AR B AR A O o 2 3t [ A R S MRS AL T S o AN
[ 0 Jag 2 ) — b 9 o AR Ll Bl B 9 % 3 A8 e R A R T
LT RAR > M BE 2 T L B A 38 R B A I 4 B JRE R [

23

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW ¥7%BZ@E

ITE (Holdings) Limited ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2003




24

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW ¥ B ZEE

ITE (Holdings) Limited ¥} ANNUAL REPORT 2003

Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEEE - FEF =+ HZER AR

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BE _EF=ZF=ZHA = — H 2 BB EG R

Geographical expansion (continued) b I #% 2 (%)

c. Promote RFID applications in the Asia Pacific region

TR B A [ 4 JBE Sk 1 5 1) 8 P

d. Promote mass transportation related smartcard
project in the Asia Pacific region
i T R b [ 4 B B R R A A B0 e R IEH

The Group has continued to promote RFID applications
in the Asia Pacific region. Several RFID applications have
been implemented in Hong Kong and the PRC during the
year, which include the first smartlabel based fleet
management system. The Group has also entered into a
contract to supply a government bureau in the PRC with
a Hitag based tagging and automated gas filing system.
7S 2 ) R 208 S A b [ A RS A P O HE T AR TR > AR AR
B 7 s % o [ vt 2 P A P R - L A DA RE AR
BRI R RS o A 5 5 1 B el [0 — R A R 2 R
ko Pt DA Hitag 2y A B9 8 BERE SR N B B IR R SRR B HLR KL o

The Group has continued to promote mass transportation
related smartcard project in the Asia Pacific region. As at
the date hereof, no agreement has yet been reached.

7 AFE B R0 A A L S B AR R A TR A R e R 1A
H o BE BRIk » KA 2R i -



Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEBE - FEF ] = HZER AR

Key Project = 32JH H

a. Participate in smartcard project for major
international event and theme park in the Greater
China Region
P A K v i [ Y R R R O RE R TELH

b. Launch smartcard based loyalty program

I RE R % T B Rt 1

c. Participate in national ID and/or social security
project in the Asia Pacific region
P A HE K H 5 1 B 1376 Bkt & R R IE E

d. Participate in smartcard based automatic fare
collection project for mass transportation system in
the Asia Pacific region
P A B K i 5 8 R R A RO R AR R B Bl I H

e. Participate in smartcard based e-commerce project in
Hong Kong
BAFHEMERFETFHEHA

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BEEZ=F=H=T—HZEBEGKER

The Group has sponsored the famous international
fundraising activity, Trailwalker, with its ISO15693 RFID
solution. No participation in smartcard project for theme
park in the Greater China has yet been made as no
suitable theme park project has been identified in the
Greater China Region.

A A ) L 7R Bl R 4 1) R R S RIS B > 2 BT & #R 1E1S 015693
SRR T 2 o A RAER P G B EEAREIEE -
2 A ] 1 R 2 LK b [ R A R RE R E o

Since the economy is undergoing a difficult stage and
smartcard based loyalty investment is contracting, no
sales agreements have yet been made.

H A T35 B R UR T DA BB R R AR B & P T B IR
TEZEAG - TR 2 4 R 2 AT fol 81 85 Ik -

The Group is preparing to tender for sizeable government
IT application development projects related to national
ID and social security.

AR AL B TE A0 B B 0y o K k(R I T B A B 0 R B R R
R B R TE A AR AT AT MR A o

Since there is no major development of fare collection
project for mass transportation system in the Asia Pacific
region, the Group has not participated in any smartcard
based automatic fare collection project for mass
transportation system in the Asia Pacific region yet.

H 7 BE K b [ SR A7 E R Y R S R R A e R B BB A H
EJE > A4 [ 0 R AR A HE K b [ R B R R AR AR R A )
I #HIHE -

Due to the uncertain economic condition and slow
development in e-commerce market, the Group has
frozen the plan to participate in smartcard based e-
commerce project in Hong Kong.

H A RSP HT A B B KR TR R T s i R AR > AR C R
AT ME R R EFHEHEE M -
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Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

HRERTEEE —FF == A=+ - HZEHFAE

Applications and services M F & Jilt %5

a. Launch RFID based supply chain, e-logistics
management and MRP solutions
FHE 5 DA S A 4 s ) A R S~ R A LR Y e R
FHI Y 7 %=

b. Launch embedded Linux solution for intelligent
facility management system
I H R RE SO B 2 R S RY ik A A Linux gy &

c. Launch wireless and mobile network solution

e £ 08 20 7 0 B 2 A 5 ) D R

d. Launch financial institution approved smartcard
solutions

I £ < P AR R T R RE R O R

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

WEEE=HF=A=F+HZHBERER

The Group has successfully launched several RFID based
e-logistics management for fleet management, terminals
and ports.

A A5 [0 1T A B A B~ U et BT BE A L M LA S
A AR E TV RERTT R -

The Group has launched a news controller interface unit
(“CIU”) with embedded Linux technology for intelligent
facility management system in July of 2002.

AR T B =R AR B i S Linux S i A A A% 1
Hil#s o EAERRIEEMRAZH -

The Group has launched a number of handheld PDA
products for offline, wireless and mobile applications.

ASAE L ff o S R AR - SRR BRI T Y B B RN E o

Since the market in financial sector has been contracting,
the plan to launch smartcard solutions for financial
institutions has been suspended. Further development
will be upon the recovery of the financial industry.

FY A < B T A5 2 A A R I 2 A 4 O B R AV A B
RER TR - (B mry B EeeE -



Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

BRERTEBE - FEF ] = HZER AR

R & D W 3%

a. Complete development of RFID based supply chain,
logistics management and MRP solutions
50 1 B % LA S Rk P 5 A 1 (A B B~ 0yt 7 A R R
) Ty %

b. Complete development of embedded Linux solution
for intelligent facility management system
5¢ B BA B8 R e R R S R S ik A X Linux 7 &

c. Complete development of wireless and mobile
solution

5 J8 BH B A % i B 2l A A% Y T

d. Complete development of smartcard based e-commerce,
ASP and ERP applications
SERL BB RE N TR R R RS AL R A 2 R
1 e

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

BEEZ=F=H=T—HZEBEGKER

Several RFID based logistics management solutions have
been completed during the year and the Group is
continuing to develop and enhance the features of RFID
based supply chain and MRP solutions.

LT 45 A 52 JRCSEOE DA SR SRR I 4 A B4 400 D A B O 5 o AR AR [
A AR5 408 B 2 T o 5 DA SRS SRk ) 2% A Y 3k JRE SR R v R
TR IEE ©

The Group has completed and launched a new controller
CIU with embedded Linux technology for intelligent
facility management system in July 2002.

AR T ZF R T ARE ] 58 i A i A R Linux % i /9
MRS - MEAERSIEEIRRZH -

The Group has developed and launched a series of
handheld device and applications, and will further invest
into new wireless and mobile solutions.

AL BB M — R P AR AR KR e — D
T 1) A % s B A A D SRR AR -

Due to dropping in demand for sophisticated
applications, the Group has suspended the development
of smartcard based e-commerce, ASP and ERP
applications. Further decision will be made when there is
increase in the demand for such applications.

H A T 35 b 0 M A O SR I T SRS B D AR AR B ARt
JEE R RE TR - E IR 118 IR 7 R A 3 VR R 0
P FRr AH BH A5 SR 184 0 IRy A R E o
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Business objectives up to 31 March 2003
as stated in the Prospectus

HRERTEEE —FF == A=+ - HZEHFAE

R & D (continued) #F 3% (4%)

e. Launch prototype product and commence trial test on
smartcard solution for financial institutions

T2 ) ST 3565 4 B A iR R O RO RE AR o S RlAT A BT

%

f. Continue R&D of smartcard based automatic fare
collection and metering application for the mass
transportation system
TR B L 2R S AR RS R B i 2 R R s e i1
il

g. Complete development of financial institution
approved smartcard solutions

€ i B 8% 5 A R AT RO B RE R O R

Quality Assurance /& & 1 78

a. Obtain ISO 9000 quality certification
HARISO 9000 i B 72 75

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2003

WE_EE=HF=A=F+HZHBERER

Due to uncertainty of the development on financial
sectors, the Group has suspended the launch of prototype
product and smartcard solutions for financial institutions
until the situation in the financial sectors improves. The
Group has launched several 1SO15693 evaluation kits,
smart key box, smart tags and asset management product
lines.

H A 45 il SE B RS B B A A O A A B i AR A )
HEREMBRARITRE » HESMEETH L - AEBCHE S
BARISO15693FH 5 (1 ~ F RESMALAS ~ & Re IR 58 J ) (4 L g

=]
AR °

The Group has continued R&D of smartcard based
automatic fare collection and metering application for the
mass transportation system, which is still at an early
research stage.

AR B BB ORI AT R S o R BEEE DU RE R A R B )
W5 2% 2 A T R SR ITE T B IE B A BT T B 0 45 B B

Since the market in financial sector has been contracting,
the plan to develop financial institution approved
smartcard solutions has been suspended. Further
development will be made upon the recovery of the
financial industry.

FY A 4 R TIT 5 22 A0 A A I T 4 D 9 < TR A R M 1Y A R R
i R EE] - T R 2E R R T AR R o

On 17 October 2002, ITE Smartcard Solutions Limited
and ITE Engineering Limited were accredited with the
ISO 9001:2000 Certificates. The Certifications are within
the timetable set forth in the Statement of Business
Objectives of our IPO Prospectus. Continuing Assessment
Visit was carried out on 5 May 2003 with both companies
passing the assessment.

YR %A PR/ 7 XITE Engineering Limited 2L jA ~ &%
F+ A+t HEHEEISO 9o01:200088 & > AT T JEHi A 4H
R FERRRT LAY R BAR o WA RN ZFE=4FEL ] B H
IR o



Use of Net Proceeds from the Placing Bt £ i 5 sk HFH Z H &

Amount to be
used up to

31 March 2003 Actual amount

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW ¥7%BZ@E

| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
: as disclosed in : Used up to
! the Prospectus ! 31 March 2003
= 8 I e
1 WRERI®R | BRE-ZES
! BE L= ! EH=F—B
| =A=+—H ZHEBE
L ZHEEMEREE B 1 4%
| |
| |
1 HK$M | HK$'M
| HEWIT HE T
| |
| |
R&D of smartcard and B RE R & ! !
RFID technological know-how and 48k 7l B4 2 J5sk : :
applications relationg to, inter alia, — KJEH » & FEFFEARR !
national ID, social security, ROGH - ALERE :
e-commerce and e-logistics HT Y RE TR | 8.0 | 8.0
| |
Expanding the Group’s operations in i J& 74 42 [ i 5i A M [ : :
the Asia Pacific region (including (45 ) B HoAth ! !
the PRC) and other selected B B R 2 27 : :
countries by way of, inter alia, 75 XA (EFEEARRR) | |
establishment of offices and TE 7% 5% B R AL | |
organizing promotional activities = i A L | |
in those countries I R 15 | 50 ! 5.0
| |
Strategic acquisition of and/or WS K BB ! !
investment in companies whose HETH AL : :
businesses are of synergistic value A T R fE (E | |
to the Group Z 3] : 4.0 : 4.0
| |
Vertical integration along the GO AR R ! !
smartcard value-added chain by I A BBER : :
way of, inter alia, investment in (BLHEAE AR L) ! !
manufacturers of smartcard and B BE I S AH B RE A : :
the related peripheral equipment JEV WAl 2 R | 4.0 | 3.0
| |
Promotion and business development #7 #4 {f IR % : :
for new value-added services Je IR 2 4 i ! !
and application fields T 5% : 3.0 | 3.0
| |
Expanding the Group’s operations in i A LM AN il 2 3675 > :
Hong Kong by way of expansion of 73 & i 858 N F | |
sales force, direct marketing and T B B 4 T 5 4 ! !
brand building activities 0 i o S0 ) : 1o 1.0
| |
Enhancement of the Group’s quality #2744 H ~ f & : :
assurance system PR ARG | 1.0 | 1.5
| |
Working capital of the Group A EHE & : 2.0 2.5
: 28.0 : 28.0
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management = 35 & & #& 45 8 g JE E

Directors # ¥

Executive Directors #1417 # &

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, aged 39, is an Executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer and one of the founders of the
Group. He is responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. With over 16 years of experience in the
executive management, Mr. H.K Lau was engaged in China trade
before founding the Group. He graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a first class honours Degree of Bachelor of Science
in Mechanical Engineering.

Mr. George Roger Manho, aged 40, is an Executive Director,
Chief Operating Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for marketing and project management of the
Group. With 15 years of experience in the control and automation
industries, electrical and mechanical projects and engineering
management, Mr. Manho was an electrical and mechanical
engineer in an engineering consultancy company. He is a
Chartered Engineer and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Engineers, The Institute of Marine Engineers and The Hong Kong
Institute of Marine Technology. He holds a Master degree in
Engineering Studies in Mechanical Engineering from the
University of Sydney and a Bachelor of Science (Engineering)
degree with first class honours in Marine Engineering from the
University of Newcastle Upon Tyne.

Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, aged 40, is an Executive Director, Chief
Technology Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for technical management and research and
development (R&D). With 19 years of experience in R&D and
production management, Mr. Cheng was the chief engineer of an
electronic company. He won the product design award of the Hong
Kong Awards for Industry for five times (one product design in
each of 1993, 2000 and 2001 and two designs in 1997). He holds a
Higher Diploma in Electronics Engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic.

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah, aged 34, is an executive and Chief Finance
Officer of the Group. He is responsible for financial management,
accounting and corporate development. He joined the Group in
March 2000 and has 12 years of experience in auditing and
corporate finance, Mr. Liu was a financial controller of a private
group. He graduated from The London School of Economics and
Political Science of the University of London with a Bachelor of
Science degree, first class honours in Management Sciences. He is
an associate member of each of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Mr. Liu is the younger brother of Mr. H.K Lau.

Bl et > BUAE = Uk - AEEATESF - 17
BUBE AN 2 — » B A G2 R 1 5 s 1 A
Fe i B o B 5 A AT BUE B J7 T EAG N AR AL B
RIS S ) 2 Hi e S H B 5 o BSE/E B SE A i
RE  FFAM TR — AR () -

B Se A - BLARDD Tk > AR EPTES - BE
MERAIFN 2 — » A AT 54 R % H B
B o RS AR AEN K BB AT - B R IE A
ST AR A 3 Oy T B T AR RSB > AN £ B 2 A
Tl — [ AR B R A ) ) 7B A S M AT AR B o 1
Se s Sy eE M LRERR > N2 A s LARAREL 6 - Sx iy
TR E @ (The Institute of Marine Engineers)
Ji 7 #5165 25 BL . 24 &5 (The Hong Kong Institute of
Marine Technology) H € & o [H 54 = A & 2
BRI TR B AR O A B R AR R R
£ (University of Newcastle Upon Tyne) #fi# T.72 £
— AR AR (T FE) BB o

W M S A > BLAR DO R > AR BATE S - Bl
BRI 2 — > B SN B R O 5 TAE o 3
SELE AT 8% e A2 A FEL 5 D LA JLAR AR R o A A
AGEFIHT A — H T A R B A TAEAT o M8SAE R 1
YRS T A s TS 8 28 it w38 (0 R — UL =4F
SERFLER EFF FKE - THE G SE S R
—NICFERMIHERFHE) o WA FHAET

B E T LRSS R -

BIgaE e > BUAE = D05 > AEMATE SR
TR AT ER - gt RAEERRE - BlELE
R EFTTAFEZHMAARLEE A% A SR B
7 T B AR AR W — I RL N B Y A A
B o B SE AR S S A BOR B B I R AR B
A& BERL R — A SR BB 5 [ I 5 A B
B R gt A g M AmEgsmAge® s - B
SEE B BB LRI



Independent Non-Executive Directors 7 3r. Ik L 17 #& &

Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, JP, CBE, aged 63, is currently a
director of a number of public companies in Hong Kong. He is also
a member of the Commission on the Strategic Development, Hong
Kong SAR and a deputy of Hong Kong SAR, the gth and 10th
National People’s Congress, PRC. He has taken an active role in
the public services. Mr. Lee holds an honorary degree of Doctor of
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an
honorary degree of Doctor of Laws from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee was appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive director in December 2000.

Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter, CBE, CPM, aged 69, is currently
the chairman of a private company and a director of a number of
companies in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr. Tsao was
the former Secretary of Home Affairs of the Hong Kong
Government. He was appointed as the special envoy to Geneva in
1979. He was the head of the Trade and Industry Departments in
1981 and the head of the Government Information Services in
1983. He was appointed as the Company’s independent non-
executive director in December 2000.

Senior Management & 4% 45 Bl Jig

Mr. Yu Cheuk Sin, aged 45, is the Managing Director of Quesco
and an Executive Director of ITES. Mr. Yu is responsible for the
business development and Sales and Marketing for ITE Smartcard
Solutions Limited. Mr. Yu also carries responsibility for the overall
business development and the operations of the QUESCO Group.
He has been involved in the IT industry since 1987 and has
previously held important marketing and management positions
with several international IT companies. Mr. Yu spearheads
various strategic partnering arrangements with several
international vendors for the pursuit of a number of sizeable IT
project initiatives in the region.

Mr. Wong Chi Cheung, Eddie, aged 40, is an Operations
Director of QISL. Mr. Wong is responsible for deploying skilled
manpower resources for QISL’s commissioned project
assignments as well as managing quality deliverables to clients.
With over 16 years of systems development and project
management experience, Mr. Wong had participated in various
sizeable project implementations covering all aspects of the system
development life cycle.

ZBASEA: > JP > CBE > BUAE/S T =58 > BlAHE W
B BT R S P S L RS A
ANRARFRGEHBEAATEEARE - B2 H A
WRAS o 2 5 e e A 7 1k B T A B2 AL T L i |- Ry
B s o SUR BB AR L B B o RN
TR BERE /AN A B AT ES o

WA SEA > CBE > CPM > BUAE AT JUsR - B4 —
IRL A F L DR A BHEA RN ESR - i
A F A W BURT Y BT BOBS [ > M6 R — LB LR &R T
BHNLEFIREE - EhRER—L\—FIEITEY
KT8 E R KR — JL/\ =4 AT BUG 37 M) 52 B
o WihAER-EETFE T ABBEHANAN
B AT -

ARG LE > BUEN A 15K > SERLHE F AR I
BEYATE S > A TR 0 S T R AR AR T
R SETS B AR o RSB A —JLNEAEREE
EABHAT 36 > 2 A H S AT 2 ) I B A S R
BARM LR GHREER - KRB RS
] P SR S e S VR B > B RIS IR R £ TR
REVEMBHLIAAE -

HWESEE > W EREMEEES > HER
ERUKIER TR E g7 HEAN S ERAE - Y&
J % 5 Rt B ER B E A IR ES o W SEAE R R AR
BH 8% R JH H BT B N AR R A 2

Z AR R B T B T AR - 3 S R AP R
B R .
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Senior Management (continued) = #% % B Jg (%)

Mr. To Wai Yin, Arthur, aged 39, is an Senior Project Manager
of QISL. Mr. To is responsible for the management of
commissioned project assignments of QISL. Mr. To has more than
14 years experience in Information Technology industry and
specialises in the areas of project management, database
management and system performance tuning. He was also
involved in the project management and development of many
mission critical systems and utilize his expertise in solving
technical problems in many sizable application for government
and semi-government organisations.

Mr. Chow Wai Kwong, Barry, aged 37, is the Senior Project
Manager of QISL. Mr. Chow has over 12 years of experience in
Information Technology Consulting including 8 years engaged in
project management, system analysis and design, technical
problem solving and 4 years in application development and
support. Mr. Chow specialises in the areas of project management
and technical consultancy. His project experiences cover a wide
range of industries including government sector, semi-
government organizations and commercial clients. Mr. Chow
holds a Bachelor of Computer Science and Master of Computer
Science from the Victoria University of Technology (Australia).

Mr. Yuk Wai Kwok, Simon, aged 38, is the Senior Marketing
Manager of the Group. Mr. Yuk is responsible for business
development, sales and marketing of the Group. He is also in
charge of the development of business co-operation arrangement
with vendor and partners in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and other
overseas market. With 12 years of experience in project
management of IT industry, Mr. Yuk has been involved in the sales
and tendering process for several sizeable IT projects. He was a
project manager of a computer company for 10 years before
joining the Group in December 1999.

Mr. But Wui Fai, Cyrus, aged 35, is an Senior Project Manager
of the Group. Mr. But is responsible for the management of
commissioned project assignments of the Group. With 12 years of
experience in IT industry on project management, systems design
and implementation, Mr. But had achieved numerous project
assignments in government sectors, public utilities and public
listed companies. He worked for 10 years in an IT consultancy
company in Hong Kong before joining the Group in September
2001.

FREAR SR > =R FERE R A E AE
HFRGER B AURKRIA B B9 B o A et AR
BERA T IAEKE  HERIEE SR - Wi
RSB FHR - A ENSZREZMEERRLS
HOPERER S iV Lk SN I IR A V2 A N
Je 2 BUR B A 9 B RHURH B2 M JH ) 4R PR R 7 %

R =Lk HERVE MR RIE H K o
JR e A A R R B I 2 B T AR R A A
WERIE B - RENT IR~ BT R A
KCBE > DL R IO AR i JE P BR B R SR AR B o JHSEAE TR
TE A TE E A B 5 00 T S AR > LI H AR BR TR
EATHEE L o WS EUN BT 2 B B T
HEEF o JHEA A WML Rl 5 KB (Victoria
University of Technology) & fif§ o} £ £2 - B2 (i} J% 7 fif
BHELRE BN o

WR B St - =+ B A SR B i A T 3 4 i G
W BEEBRE - SRS ER o REAR R
BOTTEA W B~ WP R AR i A1 T 3 Y 3t R
BAK R S 3 S AR 2 HE o IR e A A RHAT 2
i JE A B 7 T B - AR SR B Z RS KA
ERPH TR E REE T —AUE+ 2
HOmA A & B A7 — K B N6 A /AT OH B ACH A
4 o

BEEELA > =T AEEEBEALHE . B
TS B P R B T H I AR o B SEAE  EURE B
Fr2EE A B - R ATRCET X B EE Oy T R A AR
Bg > 8 58 N2 HEUN ~ A AR R B T4 R Y IH
H - #EERZEETFILAMARER > ZH1E
T A s — ] R R 5 o B R I +4F



Senior Management (continued) = #% % B g (%)

Mr. Luk Wai Suen, aged 54, is an Senior Consultant of the
Group. Mr. Luk is responsible for advising the system
development for new product development and the design of
software system. With 22 years of experience in R & D of system
networking, Mr. Luk was the deputy chief engineer of an
electronics company for 13 years before joining the Group in April
2000. He holds a degree in Computer Application from The
Shanghai Institute of Education.

Mr. Kam Wai Tak, Campbell, aged 39, is an System Manager
of the Group. Mr. Kam is responsible for the system design in both
product hardware and software. With 15 years of experience in
system and network development, Mr. Kam was an R & D engineer
of an electronic company for 9 years. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree with honours in Computer Studies from the City
University of Hong Kong.

Miss Yeung Yuen Chun, Mona, aged 29, is the Financial
Controller of the Group. Miss Yeung is responsible for managing
the Group’s finance and accounting operations, performing
statutory and management reporting. Miss. Yeung has over 6 years
in auditing, accounting and financial analysis. She is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

BefE ek - IR > AL AR
T i B B R R R A BEET PR R R R - B
R R OTE D A T AR —FF
A Y A A S B iR — ] R T S A AT BRI A8 T
P BT I - =47 o B Se A5 A Vi T 66 22 e 9 o S
FEFR 2L -

HEEEE > =t ARBMARKH > ARHE
i A BB Y R BT o SR R AR A S A A B
07 W LA+ TR ACER o R — AR T FE AT
B TAERIE JUAE o H So k45 A 7 o ki Ok B2 i B2
HEE A+ o

BB /NI > U AEBM B > ARE
HRACAR [ P 5 R @ R > AT IR E R B R R T
Y5 o B/ NMHT B - & wt KW B 20 4 7 T BN AR AR
5 o B/MABEERFER G > JIFEEA
TREBFRFE AT EE -
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Report of the Directors ## 35 € #t t

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for year ended
31 March 2003.

Principal Activities == %2 3%

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2003 are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations 2£ 45 & 43 it

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2003 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 43 to 89.

No interim dividend (2002: HK$0.003 per share) was paid during
the year. The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2003 (2002: HK$Nil)

Fixed Assets [#H & & &

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings #2417 £ 3K

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 March 2003 are set out in notes 21 and 22 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital &4

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights &l i B ##

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

EEGLANRERE_FT=F ==+ —HIL4F
BEA N T T AR B 2 R AL I ok -

AN R 2 FEEH By R TR o Mg A R 2 '
SENS L A 19 RO B S ¥R BT kg

AEEMBE - EEZF ] = —HIRMBUEE L
BT T M I S AT SR B S R M R o

AEMEE _FEF=F=1 =+ — HILFER S
B AN T RAS S A 5% H 2 B BOR DU O 56 4322 55
8o H Y AR -

AL A G A AT R AR R (R A B
00034%713 o RO AERIRERE X =4
=+ —HIEFEEZ RABRE (CEE A ) o

A BE A [B] S B A 2 5 O P R B a2 o

Joo HC At AR £

AEMEE _FEF=FEEA =+ — H L2 817
KB A A LR E 1 R B B W3R B it 21 K22 o

A FE R AR S B A 2 5 Bl ek R s Bl IR S5 1
WM £ M 5E2g °
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Share Option Schemes # B #E 51 &1

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
24 to the financial statements.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to disclose a
theoretical value of the share options granted under the
Company’s share option schemes because a number of factors
crucial for the valuation cannot be determined, and, accordingly,
any valuation of the share option based on various speculative
assumptions would not be meaningful, but would be misleading
to the shareholders of the Company.

AN ) M R R SRS B S R R M 24 o

S R AR A AR R I S AR ) % A
Z RMAREI A E - B 7R BEREAE 2 (8 35 74l A
W B R o B AR IR A [R) B B A
REAR 2 RPAG P SR 36 > S AT RE RN RO

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares of the Company

i (A TS E T NN D iy

On 25 September 2002, the Company repurchased on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited a
total of 460,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company at an aggregate cost of HK$45,162. The
directors considered that the above repurchase was made with a
view to enhancing the net assets and earnings per share of the
Company. These shares were subsequently cancelled and the
issued share capital of the Company was correspondingly reduced.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

SEFEJA T HE > AL A DA
45,162 70 J7 B 32 FT i 18] AR 3 F) BEAS vh A BT {ELo.01
7T Z et 460,000 @ B o #4550 LAl [n] I
BTEPR A A R 2 A I A R R B o %%
T[] P4 2 RE 8 o T AN B 2 B BEAT A A I AR I
FE > ok 20 O AR S R T I T B 2 TR o

B b 2t 90 i 1 o A ) ECELAT el B JB 2 S 4 A Sl
MM ] R R R A A R AR BT S

Major Customers and Suppliers = %% 5 &% it v

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year
is as follows:

AN A AR [ A A I T A R
HERRENE T

Percentage of the Group’s total

|

|

l 157 S A 1 0

|

T

: Sales : Purchases

T 1
The largest customer mREF : 56.4% : -
Five largest customers in aggregate 1 K% 7 &5l | 73.9% | -
The largest supplier e L IRE | - : 22.7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RN A5 | - 48.0%

l |

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

WA AR TN L B R R T R A
A 5% A £ ZARMTIOR > BEESEA Bt FRHEF K
AL R 2 AT AT HE 4 o
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Reserves fi# i

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Directors 7 &

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive directors #17# &

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Mr. George Roger Manho
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah

AR BE N AR A R B AR G T 2 (ol AR 58 58 R 0 O
A5 R I k25 (a) AR & WG A Bl 2 22 ) -

TAAE R R R AR TR H O AR AR

IR oV e
] {8 bl e
W8 I e e
B

Independent non-executive directors % 57 JE #1417 #

Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen
Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter

Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter will retire from the board in
accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts & FH IR % &5 4

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 1 February 2001 for an initial fixed term of
three years which will continue thereafter until terminated by
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Except for the above, none of the directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

e SE A
HREREL

WRIEA AR SRR RSB 10810 > B B SE S5 AR e
JiE 0 A BB ROK & b (AR R R R AT -

HHATEEC K A EARRFRT LR &4 > [55E4F
W = FEF—E T A — HHE R =4 IR HAR
—HAM > HEEMETARS TR =MA 2
AT LA £ 1k o

W b SCHT Al A > f5R I e 2 A IR R K & PR AT 2
AR T S AR % ) AT ] R 2 R R — AR A
AR (— ik IR BR A1) T LAAR 1k 22 1 R e AR
Ba# o

Directors’ Interest in Contracts EHE S I P AR Z s

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

AN TE] ~ HAERE A T~ HAT A B 2 R B AR e
RN ERT SAR A A R E A AL R
A4 H BUE AT (TR R A 2 2 R B4



Directors’ Interests in Shares #& 3 £ e h HE A Z R 25

The directors of the Company who held office at 31 March 2003
had the following interests in the issued share capital of the
Company at that date as recorded in the register of directors’ share

IR R MRSk R oFF ==
H=+—HEEZ AR FREENZ HTEA L LB
FTBEA PTG 2 SR 0 F

interests:

|

: Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

! 1 M T (B 0. 0175 T 1 % 48 %

l T T T

. Personal | Family . Corporate Other
Beneficial interests ! interests ! interests ! interests ! interests
Bt AR mEMEs . AdMs o Hibs

| | | |
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent (Note) 2|75t (K &%) | o o 496,990,348 | =
Mr. George Roger Manho i £ : 148,142,254 : = : = : =
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung (Note) R A (W 3E) | 16,961,000 | — | 496,990,348 | -

| | | |

Note: At 31 March 2003, Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent and Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung
were substantial shareholders of Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited which
beneficially held 496,990,348 shares, representing 54.76% interest, in the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their associates
had any personal, family, corporate or other interests in the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
Ordinance.

MtEE R SFESAESH =+ —H o BIEOE SR KO B A 5 7 Rax-
Comm (BVI) Limitedfy &= % 3K > % A 7 B % £ A
496,990,348 AN A » 1A Rl 54.76% 4t -

B bl B R A - AR SRS IR (B EE M 4R R fi] > AR
BYCHC AT AT 8 4 ) . 5 T T Sl 0 A R o (A
HESR) W] BT 5 3 2 A 4 ) CHLAT o ) g £ 3% 2 S
B IR AAR PN ~ KK - SRS -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares (continued) & /By b A = WS (4)

As at 31 March 2003, the directors had the following personal
interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company granted
at HK$1 under a share option scheme of the Company. Each option

gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share.

A—mE=

N RR

AR R A GBI — 0 o

HFZA=Zt—H o AR FEEEERE
O ) FERE R 3 LA 1 s TT 2 B A A AT R AR A
Je 473 22 W FBCHEE T A LA 2 IR A B o B B A

ZN
|

| | | | | | |
: Number : : : Number of : : :
| ofoptions | | | shares acquired | Priceper Market | Market
: outstanding at : : : 0N exercise : share to be : value per : value per share
| 31 March 2003 | | , ofoptions | paid on exercise | share atdateof | on exercise
: RZZZ=HF : : : during the year : of options ! grant of options : of options
) EAE=0 i Period during which | FRTHE | THERE | RHERE | TEERE
| i R AT (A ' Date granted | options exercisable | R T 2 | IR AT 1 | & H R0 | & H R0
 BREHE | REEH BEMRHET (0 . WikGEE  BkER i f | [ik:H
| | | | | | |
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, : 6,109,440 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : - : HK$0.095 : N/A : -
Vincent : : 2001 : 11 February 2011 : : 0.095 7t : R :
Bt [ [ Y S “EE-HENH [ [ [
! ! ZA+t=A ! Zft—HE ! ! ! !
l l | SE—EAt—R | l l l
Mr. George Roger : 4,000,000 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : - : HK$0.095 : N/A : -
Manho | | 2001 | 11 February 2011 | | 0.095% 7T | AER
il f : : Y : ZEE-HENA : : : :
\ \ ZAtZH Zt-HZE \ \ \
| | | :ZQQEZH ‘I—#E | | | |
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung: 4,000,000 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : - : HK$0.095 : N/A : -
W 1 : : 2001 : 11 February 2011 : : 0.095% 16 : Nl :
\ \ SRR ZEFENA \ \ [
: : ZATZH Zt—Hg ! : : :
l l Q=L STy P l l l
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah : 19,112,640 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : - : HK$0.095 : N/A : -
By | | 2001 | 11 February 2011 | ‘ 0.005% T | Nl
: : “EREA ZEEHEAL ! ! !
| L ZAtoE “t-H% 1 1
| | | :ZQQEZH ~I—#E | | | |
Mr. Lee Peng Fei, : 1,760,000 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : - : HK$0.095 : N/A : -
Allen ! ! 2001 11 February 2011 ! ! 0.005 70 | AR !
ik } Y * I IV l l
: : oy £l gt “t—HE ! !
| | R ot ) | | |
l l l l l l

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party

to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights

in any other body corporate.

W b 2t B 58 1 o A AR TR A AT IR ] o Sl S A o] R
5 2 BB B /NS RL R 2 T 20 S vl 3 I A A
AT Ay B SR T AL o B DL B A AT
SEMELE 5 AR E] - HEERLA T - HALAT T A R
AT T 68 K 5 S S8 BT ST A AT 22 PR o B fe o T
T AR A 5 A [0 B T 46 745 L 4 i



Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company

A A 28 ] B AR 2 B ORHE 2R

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under section
16(1) of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance shows
that as at 31 March 2003, the Company had been notified of the
following interests, being 10% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company:

AN TR R (BEFRRELD) R 2 16 () AL E /7 B
ZEEBREBRAMAES > R FE=F= =+
—H > BUFBREEA AL F B #AT A 10% 8 L L
ZHEAR

| |
: : Percentage
| w of total
' Ordinary | issued shares
I shares held | {58470
I . [
ITREEERCE | A
\ \
[ [
Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Note 1) Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Ff}#£1) I 496,900,348 | 54.76%
T o [
Mr. George Roger Manho (Note 2) P2 I (BfF G 2) : 148,142,254 16.32%
l l
Notes: B
1. These shares have been disclosed as the corporate interests of the relevant 1. PSR TR T AR P 2 M | — H R 2
directors in the section “Directors’ Interests in Shares”. ki £
2. These shares have been disclosed as the personal interests of the director in 2, W2 IR A A T A AR rh A 2 WA | — B 4 R i 22 A
the section “Directors’ Interests in Shares”. N £l

Five Year Financial Summary i 4F 22

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five years is set out on page 90 of the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2003.

Competing Interests % 3% I HE 2%

As at 31 March 2003, the directors were not aware of any business
or interest of each director, management shareholder and the
respective associates of each that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which
any such persons have or may have with the Group.

Audit Committee F4% % B &

The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen and Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung,
Peter, and an executive director, Mr. Liu Hoi Wah. Mr. Lee Peng
Fei, Allen was appointed the Chairman of the audit committee in
compliance with the requirements as set out in Rules 5.23 to 5.27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”). The audit committee meets with the
Group’s senior management and external auditors to review the
effectiveness of the internal control systems and the annual report
of the Group. The audit committee held one meeting during the
year.

A SR B 2 AR 2 A M SR A I B B A
IAAFAERE_ZZ=F = =+—HZFEHF0
H o

RERF=ZF=A=+—H SERWAMEBEL
AT EE S~ B R AR A 4% B RN - A AT AT
A B2 ) S5 S T BT R R OB T 2 SR M
a5 BE A AT A o B BT A B B2 I A7 A AT
ftb ) 45 7 5€

W B G WAL IR AT B R SE AR
BB B ASEA - UK —ARATES > B BNE LA
AL o ZEME TR SE /4 CARBRAI SEAR b i B 5.23 %
Wpo7lk ZHIE  BEELFERERG LN - FH
7 B B A S5 v AR BN B R I A O
LA A% A SR J 2 T B A ) R A 2 RO AR R o AR
W FEREEEERIT KRGk -
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Retirement Scheme B & it &1

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

A5 A (9] 225 T v 1 PR B T G o A AR
T 1 s AV (91 A5 ks o 1 N 2 7 (R B 1B e — L o o M
ANFEEEE (R RFHE]) o 8HE &Fh 8 77 b s
5 NE L2 8 R AL JORIRTH B o AR AR &5
# - fE £ N H AR B 24 B At #4E A R S A
fE Bt A 5% 2 i » Mt H A B A LR % 20,000
ST

Board Practices and Procedures & 57 8l 2R F i #1 BY

The Company has complied with the Board Practices and
Procedures as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2003.

Sponsor’s Interests 1 A\ HE %%

DBS Asia Capital Limited (“DBS Asia”) has been appointed as the
continuing sponsor of the Company for the purpose of the GEM
Listing Rules. Pursuant to the sponsorship agreement entered into
between the Company and DBS Asia, for a fee, DBS Asia acts as
the Company’s continuing sponsor for the period from 21 February
2001 to 31 March 2003.

As updated and notified by DBS Asia, DBS Asia, its directors,
employees and associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
did not have any interest in the share capital of the Company or its
subsidiaries, or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons
to subscribe for the shares of the Company or its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2003.

Auditors #% 8 ki

During the year, KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company and
RSM Nelson Wheeler were appointed by the directors as auditors
to fill the casual vacancy so arising. RSM Nelson Wheeler retire
and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the board
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 June 2003

ARFARBEFZ=ZFZA=+—HILFERN
— HE TR SEAR LTS 5. 280k 2 5,300k -

ARAE RN SEAR L 7 B KR8 5B Jon 45 % i o il
AR (RS s ) O R0 2 A A R 2 5 A AR
TN o MR AR 4y B ST 0 3 RTS8 2 PR N T
o I AER —FF - F A B EF
FEFE=A =t BB A > HAEAR R Z 54
PRIEN > A 2 i -

AT N L T R R o R R E =R
=t —H o Bmy R - K R RSB R AL
(72 8 AN 2 L Ti7 K5 R AR AT AR 20 ) sl R
) JBAS A AT AT A o S AT R EAR 42 At
NERIEAS N ) B FL R Jog A ) 2 By < MR o
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Report of the Auditors % 8 i #iz 15

%Eﬁﬂﬂéé‘ﬂ'nfﬁfﬁ

Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
ITE (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 43 to 89 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

HITE (Holdings) Limited 4 %t 3
(7% BH 2 B & 5 B A FRA 7

AR (DA fEA [ 341 ) © A% TR SR 432 55 89
FE IR W R w0 A S A R

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors i & & 4% ¥ Al < H AT

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of Opinion = W= 3t ##

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and of the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

WA T2 HR R WA E RAT 2 WK - 7
B U BT 2 S R 0 L ELRUR T A
2GR -

M 2 SRR AR TAE 2 4528 - B L B 5
FER MBI o S R

FRAM 2 1% IR A s w0 A & A 2 KR e ) 2 AT
WAL A o 2 A% 0 I G4 DAt 2y 3 2 A B B 5
P CRCRR  E EA B IR BRI
T i 44 B 75 S 3R IR BT AR 1 2 A AN A B - BT

FRIBECRE T RE S BAFK HEMZARM
THU > LKA 7 B ROE A R A B 7S L R
% o

%Wﬁ?’i%iﬁmﬁ THE AR - 3 LIRS — D) 3 A
R A BB B R A AR (R REME A S
B o b B R R AR R B R - AR
B e o fE4R AR > RIS C M8 W
WRTRE R LR - RAMAE > TN
R TARC R NI E RS T & 8 2 R -
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Opinion = 5

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2003 and of the results and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11 June 2003

RMRBL > MBEHRKETEL VR BAF
Ko BEBER -FF=F=H=+—HZBHBIRE
MEERBREZH LEEZ RALBESHE > o
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Consolidated Income Statement %G Ukss 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% %% =4 = =+ — H L4 (DA o (H)
1} 1}
: 2003 : 2002
I 22 S S B - et
| |
T T
Notes : $ | $
B 33 | | 7
Turnover = X 2,11 : ~77,301,806 : 62,848,428
| |
| |
Cost of services rendered TR LR B 2 A I (74,852,387) | (40,464,472)
| |
Cost of goods sold O & &Y A | (560,297) | (446,857)
| |
| |
: 1,889,122 : 21,937,099
Other revenue BRI | 347,164 | 767,846
Other net (loss)/gain HAth (E518) i 25 5 48 : (22,445) : 7,786
Other staff costs HoAth B T A . (7,705,661) | (8,221,326)
Depreciation and amortisation 185 e e 85 I (2,656,949) (1,553,686) ®
| |
Other operating expenses HoAh &8 78 B 52 1 (12,650,006) | (7,657,313) ﬁ
| | &
I I —
(Loss)/Profit from operations g (k8) /i Al : (20,798,775) : 5,280,406 E
Finance costs il AR A 4 | (582,385) | (142,724) =
| | =
[ [ -
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary WAL HT B | : 3
(6]
activities before taxation Z (B#8) i Al 4 I (21,381,160) | 5,137,682 =
| | [a)
I | E
Taxation BiI 5 l 167,399 | (303,802) 5
o
l | z
(Loss)/Profit attributable T8 SR REAS I | ©
to shareholders (518) Ha A 8 : (21,213,761) : 4,833,880
l l
| |
Dividend i@ 9 | - 2,723,088
| |
| |
(Loss)/Earnings per share ) OB18) / #F 10 | :
| |
Basic FLAR : (2.34 cents) : 0.53 cent
Diluted i : (2.28 cents) : 0.50 cent

1

The notes on pages 49 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.

549 % 53 89 T 119 B T i I ML 5 A B i 3R 2 — R4
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Consolidated Balance Sheet %58 A AR

At 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) it —ZFF =4 =H =+—H (LTI {H)
44
1} 1}
| 2003 | 2002
. EER=EHE | CEFRTH
Notes : $ $
i 33 | JC | Jt
| |
| |
Non-current assets FEm & A ! !
Fixed assets [u] € 12 : 2,189,258 : 3,292,069
Goodwill [k 13 | 8,240,200 9,190,992
Investment securities W& 15 ! 2,722,406 ! -
| |
| |
: 13,151,864 ! 12,483,961
| |
Current assets ) : :
Trading securities HEH I 16 : 63,010 : 132,300
Inventories e 17 | 3,833,791 3,518,684
Trade and other receivables JHEE iz Joe L A R i B K 18 I 23,693,074 | 43,791,735
Deposits and prepayment HENEE Z- 9 : 1,978,619 | 1,257,418
o Pledged bank balances HEAR ERAT 73K 28(d) | 13,511,368 9,394,828
ﬁ Bank and cash balances SRAT I Bl 4 4 iR : 1,820,974 : 5,403,498
L T T
u
EIE : 44,900,836 : 63,498,463
- T T
ﬁ Current liabilities i) £ A : :
2 Creditors and accrued charges JE A Wi 3k I B T2 ) 19 : 12,770,888 : 15,138,567
g Short term borrowings s 1A 1 B 21 | 6,405,021 | 3,885,749
s Current portion RS & : :
@ of long term borrowings Z BP0 Do) ‘ 1,666,680 | 50,314
= Provision for taxation Bl TE A3 ! | 522,070
5 | |
= : :
2 | 20,842,589 | 19,596,700
5 | |
(6] | |
Net current assets it B A | 24,058,247 | 43,901,763
| |
Total assets less ! !
current liabilities 40 08 7 R 9 B 0 . 37,210,111 | 56,385,724
| |
Non-current liabilities e/ : :
| |
Long term borrowings RHME R 22 | 2,083,310 | -
| |
| |
Net assets & E I 35,126,801 | 56,385,724
| |
| |
Capital and reserves AR At A ! !
Share capital A 23 . 9,075,360 9,079,960
Reserves fiti | 26,051,441 | 47,305,764
1 1
Shareholders’ funds B 4 : 35,126,801 : 56,385,724
| |

ITE (Holdings) Limited F£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2003

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2003

FERGNR FEZFANA +— BRI -

The notes on pages 49 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #Z &5 &mER

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% ~FZ =4 = =+ —H L4 (LI T {H)

2003 2002
R4 ZEE A

I
|
|
|
1
Notes $ $

Fi 5 JC : JG
CASH FLOWS FROM BB EHRLFH l
OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
(Loss)/Profit before taxation o ol i s A1 (5 48) (21,381,160) !
Adjustments for: LT 51 2% TEAF A R :
Depreciation 1% 1,706,157 |
Amortisation of goodwill e £ 950,792 |
Bad debts written off AR S 4,171,652 |
Net unrealised loss on trading N HEESARZ :
securities carried at fair value B W S R L 1R 56,510 :
Loss on disposals of fixed assets L [ 28 E e 1R 13,842 :
Impairment loss for e gieis !
investment securities 2 WE R 107,783 |
Gain on disposals of B R R 2 i :
trading securities (34,410) !
Interest income FLE A (132,802) :
Interest expense FlE 2 A 582,385
|
Operating (loss)/profit before 8 < 5 I :
working capital changes 2 (R /W (13,959,251) |
Decrease/(Increase) in trade R Wi e LA B g i ik :

and other receivables Wb () 13,147,824 '  (17,094,483)
Increase in deposits and prepayment ] 4 & {7 i 22 7 4% fin (721,201) :
Increase in inventories A B (315,107) |
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors JREAST I e |22 ‘

and accrued charges

() Hm

(2,367,679) |

Cash used in operations TS T B (4,215,414) |
Interest paid LB S (580,792) !
Interest element of AE & :
finance lease rentals paid 2 FE Ay (1,593) :
Hong Kong profits tax paid B A 7 s R 5 (405,675) |

Net cash used in operating activities #8452 Fir /1) Bl 4 1 4 (5,203,474) | (10,946,671)
|

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #HEBERER

ITE (Holdings) Limited F£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2003



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) %z & E&mE#E (5)

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —FZ =4 =1 =+ —H I (LIt {H)
46
| |
: 2003 : 2002
| FE=ZE | ZERBE
| |
Notes : $ | $
! | T G
T T
CASH FLOWS FROM e 0 Y B 4 A } }
INVESTING ACTIVITIES [ [
Purchases of fixed assets ik I A : (633,068) : (2,420,848)
Purchases of trading securities W H W | (70,750) | (138,360)
Proceeds from disposals B [ E 2 T 1 R IE : :
of fixed assets | 16,780 | -
Proceeds from disposals A U R R TS KOH : :
of trading securities | 117,940 | -
Payment for acquisition STAST o B g 2 ) 2 RO | |
m of subsidiaries 26 | = | (12,342,623)
b Interest received B ALE | 132,802 681,023
E_\ﬂ I I
fﬁ Net cash used in investing activities 4% % % B it F 3 & 1 58 : (436,296) : (14,220,808)
; T T
= CASH FLOWS FROM il O W L A | |
< FINANCING ACTIVITIES ‘ ‘
2 Proceeds from shares issued R 452 T PO RE 5 ) 8647 1 : :
2 under share option scheme Z A% I | - 936,700
z Repurchase of shares a] i 2 34T 2 ety : (45,162) | -
S New bank loans HERAT B | 7,000,000 | 3,885,749
m Repayment of bank loans PR SRAT B 3K - (2,583,548) | -
S Capital element of finance RS AR B 2 E A | |
5 lease rentals paid : (50,314) | (124,316)
§ Dividend paid AR | = | (2,723,988)
| |
Net cash generated from Pl VG B AR B TR A | :
financing activities : 4,320,976 1,974,145
NET DECREASE IN CASH B4 BB &S MWD | l
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ! (1,318,794) | (23,193,334)
CASH AND CASH WA —H 284 } }
EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL &S] I 14,798,326 | 37,991,660
| |
| |
CASH AND CASH R=H=+—H ! !
§ EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 2 Bl& MBI&SEY | 13,479,532 14,798,326
o ‘ ‘
o
2 ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES B4 KB4 5 E ¥ 458k l 1
@ OF CASH AND CASH 243 i i
S EQUIVALENTS l l
2 Bank and cash balances SRAT I Bl A 46 R ! 1,820,974 ! 5,403,498
¥ Pledged bank balances LA ERAT A7 2K 28(d) | 13,511,368 9,394,828
s Bank overdrafts SRATIE L 21 : (1,852,810) : -
= | |
= CASH AND CASH REA=ZT—HZE4E ! :
H EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH KB &ZEY | 13,479,532 | 14,798,326
g ‘ :

The notes on pages 49 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% ~FZ =4 = =+ —H L4 (LI T {H)
47
1 1 1
: : Reserves :
| | %ﬁ |
| 1 | | 1
: : : : Retained :
: Share : Share : Merger : profits/ :
: capital : premium : reserve : (Accumu- :
I note23 | note 25(b) | note 25(c) lated losses)! Total
L omAk | mbhwl | AR BEERS
Wik WhE2se) | WRE25(0) | (RBUERD | M
l | 1 | | .
A
| | 1 1 | =
[ [ [ [ [ o
Balance at R_FE 4 ! ! [ ! [ &
1 April 2001 PO H — H &tk : 4,490,680 : 26,509,391 : 10,748,910 : 11,590,151 : 53,339,132 E
Bonus issue AR BT | 4,490,680 | (4,490,680) | = - = E
Shares issued upon AR 2 O PR - ) : : : : : @
exercise of share A7 (o8 B HEE T 54T I I \ | I %
option under share Z ety : : : : : 5
option scheme : 98,600 : 838,100 : = : = : 036,700 g
Profit for the year A i Ui A ! - - | - | 4,833,880 | 4,833,880 i
Interim dividend declared 4F [y £ & i J | | | | | £
and paid during the year S H U S : : : : : E
—note 9 —Mfito 1 ol - - | (2,723,988) | (2,723,988) §
| | 1 1 | -
Balance at REE A | I \ \ ! 5
31 March 2002 =H=E+—HA& : 9,079,960 : 22,856,811 : 10,748,910 : 13,700,043 : 56,385,724 °
I | | | |
Repurchase of shares [ Mg 15 A3 : (4,600) : (40,562) : - : - : (45,162)
Loss for the year A4 JE 548 1 = 1 = 1 = : (21,213,761) 1 (21,213,761)
| l l l l
Balance at BB A ! ! [ [ !
31 March 2003 =Z=H=+—H##k : 9,075,360 : 22,816,249 : 10,748,910 : (7,513,718) : 35,126,801
[ | | | |

The notes on pages 49 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet % &E & {&3%

ITE (Holdings) Limited F£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2003

At 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) it —ZFF =4 =H =+—H (LTI {H)
1} 1}
: 2003 : 2002
I ZRREE D ZREFCHF
| |
I I
Notes : $ | $
Bt 5 : JG : JG
T T
Non-current assets i By A | :
| |
| |
Interests in subsidiaries T B Jigg 2 ) 2 A 14 I 30,992,474 | 36,609,992
| |
| |
Current assets i B % : |
| |
| |
Other receivables A 1 A R 2K 18 w 189,645 | 144,996
Bank and cash balances SRAT I Bl A 45 R : 62,772 : 69,644
| |
| |
i 252,417 | 214,640
| |
| |
Current liabilities B A AR : |
| |
| |
Accrued charges and other payables i #H2# f S oAt JfE A5 2k 19 | 297,610 | 3,881,028
E Provision for taxation ol T 38 4 | - 600,000
m I !
ﬁ | |
- \ 297,610 | 4,481,028
w | |
g | |
w Net current liabilities it B £ A : (45,193) : (4,266,388)
i T T
5 Net assets i | 30,047,281 | 32,343,604
| |
| |
Capital and reserves A T fii ! !
| |
| |
Share capital i & 23 : 9,075,360 9,079,960
Reserves Tt i 25 : 21,871,921 : 23,263,644
T T
Shareholders’ funds JEAHE 4 | 30,947,281 32,343,604
Il Il

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2003

ERGN _FEFZFANA +— HHE IR T8 -

The notes on pages 49 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % i %

R = A

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) # %

1.

B 5

SH =+ —H IR (DA s E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES =2 € 5l B SR

Statement of compliance % 5 % B

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprises Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

LA B 5 R 3R 4% R A s S e A 2 T A
MCE st EBERD Kk - BTN a st R &
e (A RGPy 2 BE R K E M B o LS5 BB kR IR A
W AF 5 7 HE T 5 28 2 T A PR ) RIS AR 8 2 b i A
A (TR 2Er i BRI 81 2 SEERRLE « AR A A
ERRA 2 EEGFIEORME -

Basis of preparation of the financial statements Hf % #it 3% = 47 34 5t %

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is historical cost.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the
financial statements are consistent with the previous year
except that the Group has adopted the following new or
revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAPs”) which became effective for the current
financial year.

SSAP 1 (revised) Presentation of financial statements

SSAP 11 (revised) Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) : Cash flow statements

SSAP 34 Employee benefits

The changes to accounting policies and the effects are

summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 (revised) prescribes the basis for the presentation
of financial statements and sets out guidelines for their
structure and minimum requirements for the content
thereof. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP is
that a consolidated statement of changes in equity is now
presented on page 47 of the financial statements in place of
the Group’s reserves note.

A B B 55 SR R T R R S SRR A A R o

BRAS 2 7 PR AR TR AR B B4 B A 0 R T A o (et
FRHERD) (TEratiEfl)) Sh - A 002 A5 3R B 4R
2 @ ahBOR B AR B BT B 2 -

&t e R 158 (RAERT) WHs R 2
et RIS 1R (BT ShH A
RIS 155% (K ER]) HamE
&t UE RIS 34 5% & 5 4 F1

TR 2 S KB

B wtHE I 58 1 5F (REAETRT) AAE B i 3k 2 o 2 BEHE T
B i R 2 4 b R iR AR EOR 2 485 o sz g st Efl 2 &
TY B BRI A R B RN MBS IR 47 H
DATRUA B2 07 A4 T b AR B 5
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

1.

z - o
2 KK

= H =+—H ILFE (LA o5 {E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) = %8 5B K (4])

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued) Bt % #t 3 = %7 54 36 4t (48)

SSAP 11 (revised) prescribes the basis for the translation of
foreign currency transactions and financial statements. The
principal impact of the revision of this SSAP on the
consolidated financial statements is that the income
statements of overseas subsidiaries are now translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year, whereas previously they were translated at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no material effect
on the financial statements.

SSAP 15 (revised) prescribes the revised format for the cash
flow statement. The principal impact of the revision of this
SSAP is that the consolidated cash flow statement now
presents cash flows under three headings, cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities, rather than
the five headings previously required.

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria to apply to employee benefits, together with the
required disclosures in respect thereof. The adoption of this
SSAP has resulted in the recognition of an accrual for
annual leave of approximately HK$1,100,000 as at the
balance sheet date. No such provision was made in previous
years. In addition, disclosures are now required in respect
of the Company’s share option schemes, as detailed in note
24 to the financial statements.

Consolidation # &8 H

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

B RTEQSE 19E (KB RT) BLE RN 22 5 I i 5
R 2 FEHE o RG] < B Ak B A A BB R
Z RTINS Z )8 s 7] 2 W s R DA AR
MR B AR BE 2 RSP ME SR T DA 2 R
DA H 8 2 EAR 5T o SR & ah ISR a9k (K8
ERT) BRI B R 2 B AT K -

TR 55E GRAEH]) MU B HT < & i %
B o ZETZERHENZ FTER BB SR E
KRB R LB RS =TH > 2 RRRE - E R
SR E) o

& w118 JI 56 34 55 B 8 1B B AR Il 12 1= I IR 55 4 2 i
FR T RO o PR MG TE € S UE R EOR 45
A AR Z AL FRSEAE 491,100,000 TCHEH - 1
i 3 A A B RUSIG A LA B - AL - A RBLE
W IR HE ST ) 2 B R IR O B R M k24 o

BOMBRECEARNRREMBARBRE=A=
T HZ MBS R o A RO 2 KB A 2
SR B O AR 2 BB R A SR B I R B 2 3
AEZCH AR () o

A P 5 7 2 T 5 5 e s R A £ M



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

e

= H =+—H 1L 4F B (DA o5 (H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% & 585K (4])

Subsidiaries Fff )& 2 &)

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or
issued share capital, or controls the composition of the
board of directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be
controlled if the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses. The
results of a subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Fixed assets and depreciation [& & & /E &1

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has
already been recognised is added to the carrying amount of
the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits,
in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 4 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 4 years

Computer and other equipment 4 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a
fixed asset are determined as the difference between the
estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assets and are recognised in the income statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

BOF JB 2 ) 2 8 A 4 ) L 4 I R 2 T e M SR
MEROBEATIRA - S HERGHRZ AR - K
JRE§ O R R 2 B R o e A o AR L B R
IR L B B B A BRI A LSS R R A 4R o

TEARNF 2 EEAREERN - WA 7 2 808 1% K
AME IR ZALT ARG 1R o WHE A~ R ST A R F
i B B W e BB o

W] S 2 A A AR AR T R AR (B RO A R
R H AN -

W] S 2 2 A L A S A A A A e
R DL K i 8 A 3B 5 ) i 2 B R A o AT T E
HAR 2 COERS B SCH Y HAR RS 3 an (B BG B A &
FE 2 JRAS 5T AE R BUKSF) m O E B A =T A IR -
AN EE ZBRTEME A o BT A A FEAR BH SR B S
P TR PR TR A ST

W] S 2 2 37 5 A B TR T AR BR - DLELARIE
HRES AR R EE o MR 2 A R AER AT

HLEH 3 P 4 4 L 4
(WA J

T 4

A B 4

vl o 4

i % B B B R T AR 2 4R AR DA R B R AR
T RH SRR T B 2 M ZE B T > MR RBE B
RS E L
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

1.

z - o
2 KK

= H =+—H ILFE (LA o5 {E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) = %8 5B K (4])

Leased assets fi & & &=

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes

substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are

classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which

the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of

ownership are classified as operating leases.

@

(ii)

H AR LRI BT AT R 2 A6 DR A 23 A o] L P e i i 2
HEME > HEEUA RS o AN R
A e 2 A I AE BB S AR > RIS

mEHe -

Assets acquired under finance leases LA Fil & FH & i A > & &

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the
assets over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to the
income statement over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of
a financing nature are accounted for as finance
leases, but are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives.

Operating lease charges &%/ FH & 2 i

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the income statement in equal
instalments on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

AR BN A A8 2 AR 4 A AT S < A fE
B I AE A A T (E B R B R
BUE (a0 75 B 2 B0 1 7 I8 8 2 - T AR fE A
(R FHRE & M) A5 2 A BRI - R TEM
o ) L A O 2 AR R (AR S 2 R )
DA 4 45 3 e o LA 4R - R AT SN & Z LB
M a R E AR Adas ® o Mg IR
il 20 ) B RO A 2 EE SRR B - A A e e
U A 22 w3 A 7% BH S o

EREMEEE B OWA ZEE  URERE
W N T K R A

B N A 2 25 i A6 AL B ME A I 7 2 L > AR
BHEENZ R e EWTREN - DA%
SRR A R AT BR -



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

e

= H =+—H 1L 4F B (DA o5 (H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% & 585K (4])

Goodwill 7=

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired as at the date of the acquisition.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is
amortised to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. Goodwill is
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost less

accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Investment securities # & % %%

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose, are stated at cost
less any impairment losses. The carrying amounts of
individual investment securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values have
declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline other
than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such
investment securities is reduced to its fair value. The
amount of the reduction is recognised as an expense in the
income statement.

Trading securities & & & ¢

Trading securities are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value on the basis of their quoted market prices, on an
individual investment basis. Changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement as they arise. Securities
are presented as trading securities when they were acquired
principally for the purpose of generating a profit from

short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin.

T i M O Jag 2 ) O AR 2 PR R 22 5 H BT AN 2 i
Jif A BELAS A [ A L R A T R EE e B R A
R 22 -

TR VA i e Jo 2 ) BT 7 2 2 7 DL AR ik 4% HL A Rl
P AR TR AR S Wi RS o PR T R A (AN BR
A ] 2 AR G AT ] ol (L M 1R E A 5 7 L R S
HE o

BEB AT A RMFEA 2B HE - WA
AT Ao 5 s AR 1B A AR o B 2 MR T TG R 4% 46
FHENMmS > DA P EERTERRERE -
i 13 35 BRI L R K o %A RB R 2 IR A (E A D &
L SPE AR - T L PR T (L B 7 i b

P A i 2 4 5 | AR i 2 2 T 3 MR AR A N TR R AE
B BRI T2 P8 (8 2 5 B IS 72 2R BRp A
i 4 3% TR R o T I 2 R R T AR R AR MR AR
W o BRI E > W25 A E RS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

1.

= H =+—H ILFE (LA o5 {E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) = %8 5B K (4])

Impairment of assets % 7 ¥l {H

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that any
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is reversed only if the loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that is
not expected to recur, and the increase in recoverable
amount relates clearly to the reversal of the effect of that
specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of impairment losses is credited to the

income statement in the period in which it arises.

B E R RS o AO B 3 B R K AR R
DA BB AT AT ¥ A A SE B R > BT C RS BB
{E e 1R ANt B B ) -

A AT AT AE B AT AE > A Al B 2 nl i) B e
W R T (R R T i [ R R R
BERERD o W IR E R R - e Bl (Al 18 B R A R
AW i % e

Y 2 W] TR < R 2 H R A R AR (e A
T B o Al A (R 2 LA BRBE AT 2 47 1 36
FHE TR R A 2 B BUE o TR 47 15 S
B IRF T 8 3 & B8R 2 BT AN T % TR E R R
B o AN A AR 2 B U B R RE R AL i A
FETEAZBERE - AT Rk RMEEA S
(RPZE AR B 42 2 BETT) B e AR 2 B S B 4 Ul e RO -

Brra s US> A TE A E AT R[] 4 o T A
A Z Ak A BT S s R AR 1R i (] o A B
B2 WA R R A E ARt — R R S A 5|
T 2% S 2 R R E A R B > Rz
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

1.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% & 585K (4])

Inventories 7# &

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated on the first in first out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to render
services or make the sales.

When inventories are consumed in rendering services or
sold, carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period when the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Service contracts JIk % & &

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Costs of rendering services
comprise labour and other costs of personnel directly
engaged in providing the services and attributable
overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based
on the percentage of completion of the transaction,
provided that the revenue, the costs incurred and the
estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by reference to
the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to
be incurred under the transaction.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Ve
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

Ah oo —
ME_FX
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% 5 B &K (4])

Service contracts (continued) R % & % (45)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as an amount due from contract

customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is treated as an amount due to contract customers.

Trade receivable /& W HE 5%

Provision is made against trade receivable to the extent they
are considered to be doubtful. Trade receivable in the
consolidated balance sheet are stated net of such provision,
if any.

Cash and cash equivalents B 4 & 81 & & &Y

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management within three months from the
date of the advance.

i B AE S A RS TN A R i M) B 2 T R e
R E L AT 3R R 7 - BREE S 2 R B B Ak
IE o

7 AN KRR R o AR S A A 2 R
i A 2 TR S 1R > BREUIF SRR % 5 & 203K
JH o

35t B WSO AR T BE TR 4R R R VE - HE AR N Z
JRE W B R T AE 1 BR % TE E M () AR SR

MG aRERERNS » HekHeSHY I aE
Bl R IAF K - T BE R 5 OB 2 Ble K
A {5 T8l JL g o1 AS K A 5 1) 4 T R BEL A 2 TR ]
NI = AR S R R R o R SR Y
Z B ST IR BR AN A = 8] R 7 g SR R NI A A
LM & 4 BT 2 ) 2 B0 L SRATIE L -

Provisions and contingent liabilities #E 4§ M 5k 4% & &

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

w0 TR A 2 o TR DRI 1 5 SR 5 UM E 2R
1M AT 5% 05 AR AT A8 5 A AR A s A R SE
il s IRF {8 5 2 e 52 R ] ol < 2 B Rl o A B
fif o MRS W FEMEELR > EMeLURTHRY
TEI T 5 S i 2 BUESHR -



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

HE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% & 585K (4])

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued) ¥ & sk 4R £1 & (45)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Translation of foreign currencies #h ¥ # 3%

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt

with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the balance sheet of overseas subsidiaries
expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date whilst the income statement is translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates.
The resulting translation differences are dealt with as a

movement in reserves.

Revenue recognition W %5 ift 52

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

6] Service revenue R 5 Uk 7%

Service revenue comprises revenue from smartcard
systems, radio frequency identification (“RFID”)
and information technology and related service
contracts, and electrical and mechanical installation
work and related service contracts.

Service revenue is recognised on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Service contracts”.

WA T AT R AR A e o B MR R RE AT 5
HoAGEE o BRI AT i 22 T REE AR /DN o P R4 R % 3R
R BIREAR o TEAEFRPT - HATAE (A8 DL — ) S R
RACHTH 2 B L SRS ACGEH - BR IR AT AT g
PR /N - R[] IR 45 55 4 BOOR 1 £

N Z NS T 38 5y H SRR S W o IShIE
B B R B AR A T 2 AR
F s o WIE S0 20 Ml 2% 488 i a5 R L

TR ARG R B R g SN F DIANEBUR 2 B E R
R E B 2 MEAR YT Ry o - 1 i 4t 25 A1) %
S RE AT B o ph L AR 2 T SO R A A R A AR )
N

iy 4 A TE AL R T RE B IR AASSE T o DA K BE A AT
SEHLERFL o AR TS 7 ik R

5 i i B4 B RE R AR AL~ AR - BB
AR BRI & 40 ~ 1878 22 26 TR Sl B & 40 2 Ui 4 o

JIR 75 Wig i A 4 52 L 43 He Oy SRR - REAE TR &
HEFTBOR [IRE & 4] —f -
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —%F%

1.

= H =+—H ILFE (LA o5 {E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) = %8 5B K (4])

Revenue recognition (continued) ¥ %% 7 #2 (4)

(i)  Consultancy fee income J&f [H] 22 F Wit A

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the

services are rendered.
(iii) Income from maintenance services %= R %5 = W A

Income from maintenance services is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the

maintenance service contracts.

Income received or receivable in respect of services
which have not been completed on or before the
balance sheet date are shown in the balance sheet as

deferred maintenance income.
(iv)  Sale of goods & &

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(v)  Interest income FIJE U A

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Employee benefits 12 & & Fl

@) Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as expenses in the income statement as

incurred.

(ii)) Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

R o) 2 T SO P s 2 R R R A .

PR MR B 2 WO AR R PR AR S 5 40 Mk st B 47 T Tl

o5
277
A ©

P AR AT E HE H B AR 58 IR ES < B ik
FE WA T B 2 B AR RS 7 I IR WA -

e A 7 B R R 25 IRE > BIVAS 5 AN B O O B
2 R B B [0 i 2 AR, o Wik 41 BR AR T B2 5
Prdn -

B SR 388 A 75 A < R A T B R ) 3 4 I )
Bl fERR AR o

B SR LR R B Ak 2 AT (BFEREE
R ] RN B R B IR R A 2 ) > A A R e

A B AF AR B R 0 s A B 2 M B HE 4 A B B T AR B
T LAMERR o {8 B N E £ 4558 H prig gt JIREs i =
A2 FE B AR KB > A BT 1R
s



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% =% %

1.

= H =+—H 1L 4F B (DA o5 (H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) =% & 585K (4])

Employee benefits (continued) 12 B & # (%)

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(iii)) The financial impact of share options granted under
the share option scheme is not recorded in the
Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet and no
employee benefit cost or obligation is recognised
until such time as the options are exercised. Upon
the exercise of share options, equity is increased by
the amount of the proceeds received. Options which
are cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which
lapse, are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.

Segment reporting 43 # #t

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the
primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and fixed assets. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group enterprises within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms

as those available to other external parties.

A T8 9 1B e AR s E MR 2 Mg B R A A IR AR IR 7
s o

52 ) W PO ME 2 A R A R AT (I B AR > T
BRAEA N F AR B 2 EE AR A G R
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B 0 2 A T R AT S I R
4 -

G R i 4R T A SR R O A R B (SE S
HB) o BLE R 2 B R P B A IR (AR
oI F) AR IR o FL PR 52 2 g B [ Sk B A 73
iR A B A o

HRYEAS G | o R B 5 i iy 2 TE X > AR B FR AR DL 3
5o il 2 3 75 SN EBHAE M > TARE IR o
0 B A 4 ol Bl A% 2K o

JraBucas ~ SO~ SERT - B R AR T Bk
BUR K — 2 E 2T H - DL CH A BE LA 45 31 2 40 i
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —%F%

1.

= H =+—H ILFE (LA o5 {E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) = %8 5B K (4])

Segment reporting (continued) 43 #F #z 45 (48)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than
one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.

Related parties B # A 1+

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the
Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in
making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or other entities.

Taxation i IEH

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year
as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
disallowable. Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate
prevailing for the year based on the assessable profit for the
year less allowable losses, if any, brought forward.

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method in
respect of the taxation effect arising from all material
timing differences between the accounting and tax
treatment of income and expenditure, which are expected
with reasonable probability to crystallise in the foreseeable
future.

Future deferred tax benefits are not recognised unless their
realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

G IS A B S A AT T L (D O A — A 4
ZOPEREE (AT B AT ) 9 [ I B E A 2 B
A o

ROBIHE FHGQFEMH L AFREE - sHEHEH
fHE - DERMERM -

WSR ARG B RE A R M R B ) — T AL
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53— 75 N\ o R A T ] N A A [ e A A
I B AR PR B R 2 By o B AR B
73— 7 N ¥ 52 A AR ) 2 B s R 2 R Y
T ABRANLEIB A AL BEAL - BEA
b mT AR R N A

BLIE TS ARARAF N S AR  $ HF JH AR SO JE R S T
5 SR B AR RO o B s A BL Sl £ it E R Bl i
3 $1 BR AT AT 7R b s 15 2 Bl 85 18 B AR 1% 4R B R B
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A S T TEL T & i BB B A M i B S 2 SR B T ik 2
TR] > P A K IR 25 A T AH 3 T RE A PI SoR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% =% %

2. TURNOVER AND REVENUE & 3£ #H M & 4%

The principal activity of the Company is investment

holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set W5 50 s B R B sk 1q A o
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

AE=H = H IR E (DA TSI E)

AN T 2 FE I Sy R o WA Rl 2

AEIR > 258 EE R AR A L S REANT

T T
: 2003 : 2002
b R ZRECE
1 1
| $ | $
| 7]j | fn
| |
Turnover I : :
Provision of smartcard systems, R RE R R4 - SHEA & : :
RFID and information R e B5 ! !
technology services : :
— Service revenue — MR B i 2 : 11,473,336 : 32,158,134
— Income from maintenance —RERB WA : :
services [ 2,507,751 | 689,707
— Sales of service related products — BB R A5 R B 2 : 940,210 : 532,240
1 1
: 14,921,297 : 33,380,081
Consultancy fee income TR ) 2 ) M A : 46,102,780 : 15,341,510
Service revenue from provision of PR B L TR 2 IR S Wi i : :
electrical and mechanical ! !
installation work : 16,277,729 : 14,126,837
| |
| |
: 77,301,806 : 62,848,428
Other revenue HoAth i 75 | i
Interest on bank deposits SRATAF RS : 132,802 : 681,023
Other income Ho A i A : 214,362 | 86,823
} 347,164 767,846
. 77,648,970 | 63,616,274
| |
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% — &% =4 = H =+ — H L4 (Dol (H)

3. OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN H fih (&54H) Ik 25 5 %

: 2003 : 2002
I IRBEE | ZRRCE
: :
i 5 s
! gt | Jt
: :
Exchange gain BFE 5 i i : 13,497 | 18,677
Gain on disposals of trading securities 8 & 5 35 7 2 I 42 : 34,410 : -
Net unrealised loss on trading N B 5 iR 2 E B \ \
securities carried at fair value o 8 3 s 1505 A : (56,510) | (6,060)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets H 5 [ E R R : (13,842) (4,831)
| (22,445) | 7,786
| |




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

4.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION
BRBLET H W 2% < G 18) i Al

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is

arrived at after charging:

BRBIHT B % 3B 2 () Al e nkk -

: 2003 : 2002
S RE=4E | ZERE A
i $ $
| )T: | f[-‘
| |
Finance costs: Fll AR : :
Interest on bank loans and SRAT R B SRR : :
overdrafts ! 580,792 | 132,309
Finance lease charges V& 2 : 1,593 | 10,415
| |
\ 582,385 ! 142,724
: :
Other items: HAMIERE - : :
Amortisation of goodwill P A 6 | 950,792 | 316,931
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BT 4 I 321,542 | 627,500
Cost of inventories 17 & A : 9,402,740 : 14,450,472
Depreciation: P - : :
Owned fixed assets HEA [ E ! 1,681,459 | 1,185,555
Leased fixed assets FiEN= T brel <9 : 24,698 : 51,200
Impairment loss on investment B R 2 W E M 1R | :
securities : 107,783 : =
Operating lease charges: REHEER - HEWEZ B !
minimum lease payments for FHLES A A : :
hire of properties | 2,677,002 2,347,957
Staff costs including directors’ 355 HE S 4 BB A AR T ! !
emoluments and retirement ez B T4 | |
benefit scheme contributions : 60,300,634 : 29,940,895
| |
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = =+—H L4 (DAt (H)

5. TAXATION #4IH

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: AR A Ui g K R 2 BT ¢
: 2003 : 2002
SRR | ZRBECH
| |
| |
| $ $
: T JG
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax  A<4F & 7 i Il 15 6 3 45 : |
for the year : - (390,400)
Overprovision in respect of prior year {1 4F i #8 4 f# ff | 167,399 86,598
|
T T
|
‘ 167,399 | (303,802)
L L
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required since AL AN - R A A AT AR W] FEAG 2 A > Ol
the Group has no assessable profit for the year. The amount A W RSB - BE X _F =) =+ —
provided for the year ended 31 March 2002 was calculated H o> A B3 4 AT Ak 22 v A1) L1696 w153 o
at 16% based on the assessable profit for that year.
No provision for deferred taxation has been made as the H A IR 22 5 R0 WO A B AR A B T A o
effect of timing differences is immaterial.
6. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS &= 39 4
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the GEM RAB R ZE A L i 58 R % 7 s A ) AR 81 B 161 10k 45 %
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies ZHEBMEFNEOT
Ordinance is as follows:
| |
‘ 2003 ‘ 2002
L EERER g CRBTH
| |
I I
| |
| $ | $
I Jo ! JG
| |
I I
Fees Wa : 480,000 480,000
Basic salaries, allowances and JE T~ HERSG K = Ath 4 A ! !
| |
other benefits \ 1,814,000 | 2,205,888
Retirement benefit scheme AR RAR AT B 3tk : :
contributions : 40,300 : 41,800
| 2,334,300 , 2,727,688
L L




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

SRS

W _EE

- H IE4EBE (DA 51 (H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) # & M 4% (48)

In addition to the above emoluments, certain directors were
granted share options under the Company’s share option
scheme, further details of which are disclosed in note 24 to
the financial statements. No value in respect of the share
options granted is included in the above directors’

emoluments disclosure.

Four executive directors received emoluments of $588,000
(2002: $708,672), $588,000 (2002: $708,575), $588,000
(2002: $708,641), and $90,300 (2002: $121,800)
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2003.

Included in the directors’ emoluments were fees of
$240,000 (2002: $240,000) and $240,000 (2002:
$240,000) paid to the two independent non-executive
directors respectively during the year.

The emoluments of the directors (executive and
independent non-executive) is within the following band:

B L e Ak o AR S PR B A 2 W) 2 A ) 1
AT EE SR T I OHE - SRS OO B AR T R 24
R BEFE o DL LW SR BB - A ELAE BT
JBc e (B fE -

WRE _FEFE=F=] = + H 4R > DA #AT

$§7\)L7'IJEX588 0007 (FEEL 4 : 708,67270) »
588,00070 (& & 4 : 708,57570) > 588,0007C
(ZFEF A4F 1 708,64170) > K 90,3007C (ZFE
4 1 121,80070) Z W4 -

TP G G AR 4 (3] AR 1A 4 Bl 1) TR A7 48 ST JE AT
# AT A #240,00000 (ZFE T4F 1 240,000
Jt) X 240,00070 (= FE 4 : 240,00070) Z 1
4 o

AT B 57 IR AT HE R 2 B AR T A

I I
| | 2002
! e S
| |
| |
: Number of : Number of
\ directors | directors
L WEEWH | EHEHE
| |
| |
| |
$Nil — $1,000,000 %It —1,000,0007C : 6 : 6
| |

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

AR AR SN 1) SN o AR R S 1
TNAASE T > s AE 2 0 A A SR (B 157 22 4% ) s il B el
& -

A TA) 45 28 S ML 48 5T S AT T A R ) R R AR AT
M < 2 22 BF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —%F%

7.

7z

EZH=+—HILFEE (DL T E)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS & & # A+

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none A R EET AN B (SR AE D =) &
(2002: three) are directors whose emoluments are HH HEZMEFEE R M etk o HER A
disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of the emoluments in (ZFT AR - W) AL 2 &a%Em T

respect of the five (2002: two) individuals are as follows:

| 2003 | 2002
! TR TEEBTAR
| |
| |
| |
| $ | $
[ JG | JG
| |
| |
Basic salaries, allowances and JE T~ v A R H Al A A : :
other benefits \ 4,210,722 | 675,645
Retirement benefit scheme AR A T £ R : :
contributions : 60,000 : 15,806
| |
| 4,270,722 | 691,451
1 1
The emoluments of the five (2002: two) individuals with AL (R AR M) fem it A L2 &N R
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: 5 4 [
| 2003 | 2002
I IRREAE | R
| |
| |
: Number of : Number of
I individuals | individuals
| A% AR
| |
| |
$Nil — $1,000,000 % Jt—1,000,0007C | 4 | 2
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017C — 1,500,0007C : 1 : -
1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five AR IR > A A ) S 1) A B v T N S A 4 s fE
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon SR ASE A AL > SR A5 A 7 4 [ IRy 2 4
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. JE Al T A £
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
JBE R BEAL (G 18) 7 i Al
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders i SR A 4 4 (B4R s R 4% — 28 15 %1, 351,161
includes a loss of $1,351,161 (2002: $489,265) which has T (TR A 489,26570) %A D R A

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. INE 2 B N R o



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 =] =+— H L4 (DA Ts (H)
9. DIVIDEND B &
T T
: 2003 : 2002
PEESC T =V L =
I I
I I
I I
I $ $
! yr JG
I I
I I
| I
I |
Interim dividend of $Nil BB IR B S A i i R i E T | |
(2002: $0.003) per share declared (ZFZF : HKo.oo370) | |
and paid | - 2,723,988
Il Il

10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE %% Bt (&G 18) &)

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share i %t

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to shareholders of
$21,213,761 (2002: profit of $4,833,880) and the
weighted average of 907,759,068 ordinary shares
(2002: 903,581,535 shares after adjusting for the
bonus issue in 2002) in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share %5 /i # #

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss attributable to shareholders of
$21,213,761 (2002: profit of $4,833,880) and the
weighted average of 930,321,740 ordinary shares
(2002: 968,708,399 shares after adjusting for the
bonus issue in 2002) after adjusting for the effects
of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.

LA (s 4H) &R

BREEA (F518) /R T 1 e R A 548 21,213,761
T (CFF A ¢ %A 4,833,88070) MK AF A EL B84 T E
15y 2 N HE -2 B 8 907,759,068 % (. ZFF —4F ¢
903,581,535/% » Ok —FF A 2 AL EEATF ol
He) W BT o

P UER) &R

R (R 8) B R ) 23 2 R R A ks 18
21,213,76170 (—F % 4 : i F14,833,88070) » ilff
O T AV A AL 2 IR A AR 2 R AR R R AR
i HE S 24 % # 930,321,740 ( . F E —4E
068,708,399 » CLHt —FE A 2 AL EEATAE i
) W T

67

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17§ $R&z M5t

ITE (Holdings) Limited F£3§ ANNUAL REPORT 2003




68

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17§ $R&z M5t

ITE (Holdings) Limited ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2003

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —%F%

F=E=EH =4

I IR4EFE (DA T oI ME)

10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) %8 (&) & F (4)

(¢) Reconciliations ¥}z

: 2003 : 2002
LSRR ZEECH
| |
| |
: Number : Number
| of shares | of shares
| e | B B
l l
Weighted average number of — FifEstH &R EEA (HiH) : :
ordinary shares used in B 22 % 5 e iR~ B ! !
calculating basic (loss)/ : :
earnings per share ' 907,759,068 | 903,581,535
Deemed issue of ordinary AR £ AR 384T 2 30 7 i |
shares for no consideration : 22,562,672 : 65,126,864
Weighted average number of I {553 45 B i (B518) : :
ordinary shares used in ) 22 e 8 i B ST 3% B : :
calculating diluted (loss)/ \ \
earnings per share : 930,321,740 : 968,708,399
Il Il

11. SEGMENT REPORTING 43 #F #z

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format

FLH R AR

because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal

financial reporting.

(a) Business segments % 3£ % # 45

The Group comprises the following main business

segments:

Smartcard systems,

The provision of

BEER RS

RFID and smartcard systems, S AR I B
information RFID and information & AR R 5
technology services technology services
Consultancy fee The provision of JeEL 1 i 5
income information technology
consultancy services
Electrical and The provision of WELE TR

mechanical
installation work

electrical and
mechanical

installation work

O A 2 1] 2 S5 I AC B St I R 51 43 B R o AR AR
PB4 DA S O B0 2 7 ARy E R B/

P 2 R R A o

ASE M 2 BRI

AR RS - W
WL B iR AR S

B4 5 R 5 B ] i 55

TR % 7B 2 o TR 5



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 43 #B # & (%)

(a) Business segments (continued) #%3& % #4 (4)

T T T T
' Smartcard systems, ' : :
: RFID and information : : :
. technology services | Consultancy | Electrical and |
AT YAy T services I mechanical installation | Consolidated
| RE AR | B RE | BRELE TR | &a
] T ] T ] T ] T
I 2003 I 2002 ! 2003 I o002 | 2003 I 2002 ! 2003 I 2002
| ZRR=F | CBRCEF ) CRR=H | CRRCF ) CRPSE CRRCF ) CRRSE ) CER0E
T T T T T T T T
| $) $ g ¥ §) ¥ $) $
‘ yir T, T, T, T T, T, T
TURNOVER g2 | | | | | } | }
Revenue g | 14,921,207 | 33,380,081 46,102,780 | 15341510 | 16,277,720 | 14126837 , 77,301,806 | 62,848,428
| Il | Il | Il | Il
RESULTS x4 | l | l | l | l
Segment results BHER 1(15,500,026) | 6,280,031 | 3,414,096 | 35728 | (3,704,760); 3,736,328 | (15,799,690) | 10,061,087
Il Il Il Il Il Il | |
Unallocated corporate R & : : : : : : : :
Tevenue I I I I I I I 347,164 | 767,846
Unallocated corporate ATARARER ! ! ! : ! : :
expenses : : : : : : : (5,346,249): (5,548,527)
| | | | | | I T
(Loss)/Proft from operations 4 (&) /it : : : : : : : (20,798,775)" 5,280,406
Finance costs Cisyes : : : : : : L (82385),  (42724)
| | | | | | k T
(Loss)/Profit before taxation il (E548) /Al : : : : : : : (21,3813160): 5,137,682
Taxation A | ‘ | | | | | 167,399 | (303,802)
| | | | | | \ +
(Loss)/Proftattibutable o~ RS (BH) /| | : : : : : |
shareholders il | I \ | \ | 1 (21,213,761) | 4,833,880
| I | I | l | L
N I I I I I I I |
ASSETS BE | | | I \ \ w i
Segment assets A 130,025,360 | 43,927,787 | 12,095,505 | 11,334,352 | 3,836,445 | 0,912,735 | 45,957,400 | 65,174,874
Unallocated corporate assets A T4 LB/ : ! : ‘ : ‘ : 12,095,300 | 10,807,550
| | I |
I I I I I I i 0
Consolidated total assets GRMEE ! ! ! ! ! ! ! 58,052,700 1 75,982,424
I I I I I I I |
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ |
LIABILITIES gf | | | I | I i |
Segment liabilities BAaH U og6u724 1 208513 6,146,929 ' 4,930,655 ' 2,545,070 | 3,372,085 ' 14,303,723 | 11,287,853
Unallocated corporate ATARAR : : : : : : : :
liabilities | | | | | | i 8,622,176 | 8,308,847
[ [ [ [ [ I L '
Consolidated total GREBAR : : : : : : : :
liabilities | | \ | \ \ 122,925,809 | 19,596,700
| | | | | | | I
§ I I I I I I I
OTHER INFORMATION ~ Efb &R | I | i | | \
Capital expenditure BRI I 3,054,173 | 11445831 2347251 137,145 - -
Depreciation and i R : : : : : : :
amortisation | 618402 | 4388 239045, 93,008 - -
Tmpairment loss WEER | 107,783 | | | | - “
Non-cash expenses other EXFBEHL I | I | I | I
than depreciation, (& #HK : : : ‘ : ‘
amortization and HEERRID : : : : : : :
impairment loss | 3,671,652 - = -1 500,000 , -
L L L L L L L
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% — &% =4 = H =+ — H L4 (Dol (H)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 43 #B k15 (48)

(b)

Geographical segments % £ 2 Hb 35 #1 43

The Group participates in two principal
environments, Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

In presenting information on the basis of
geographical segment, segment revenue is based on

A S T T R b I A SRS > R AN EE AR
SEANE (ThE]) -

TE 1% K858 W 30 2 5 EORLR > 2 BRUCA T 45 % 5 T AE

WIS Gy o o3V E R S AR B ST 1 T AE sk

the geographical location of customers. Segment 24y o
assets and capital expenditure are based on the
geographical location of the assets.
: Hong Kong : The PRC : Consolidated
| B | G| | o
f T T T T T
2003 | 2002 |, 2003 | 2002 2003 | 2002
| CREE | SRECE ) CFREF ) CRRR O CREER | “RRA
1 § ) 5 5| 5 § | $
: % T % T T b
Revenue from external K ESME Pl : : : : : :
customers | 77,159,358 | 54274175 | 142,448 | 8574253 | 77,301,806 | 62,848,428
Segment assets W E : 54,462,262 : 58,052,100 : 3,590,438 : 7,839,332 :58,052,700 : 66,791,432
Capital expenditure incurred ~ FRELMEAFL i | | | i
during the year : 608,471 : 2,319,172 : 2,854,786 : 101,676 : 3,463,257 : 2,420,848
| | | | |




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 =] =+— H L4 (DA Ts (H)

12. FIXED ASSETS i & % &

The Group A4

: : : Computer : :
: Leasehold : Furniture : and other : Motor :
| improvements | and fixtures | equipment | vehicles | Total
COMEMEEE | GERER | BERGMRE O RE A
| | | | |
| | | | |
! $ $ 1 $ $ $
| i i o i t
1 1 1 1 1
| | | | |
Cost A [ [ [ | |
At 1 April 2002 REZFZZFEMA—H : 1,531,649 : 703,296 : 4,456,664 : 118,549 : 6,810,158
Additions HE : 116,000 : 64,359 : 452,709 : - : 633,068
Disposals/Written off &/ L (628,449) ! (43250) | (106,684) I (118,549) I (896,932)
| | | | |
| | | | |
At 31 March 2003 RoZF=E=A=+-H : 1,019,200 : 724,405 : 4,802,689 : - : 6,546,294
Accumulated depreciation AR - : : : : :
At1 April 2002 e < Sut21)i B 566,000 | 364549 | 2507542 79032 | 3517189
Charge for the year REENE ! 681,433 ! 167,278 | 832,748 | 24,608 | 1,706,157
| | | | |
Disposals/Written off iAok | (628,449) | (43,250) | (90,881) | (103,730) | (866,310)
| | | | |
| | | | |
At 31 March 2003 REZZ=F=F=+—H : 619,050 : 488,577 : 3,249,409 : - : 4,357,036
T T T T T
Net book value REFE : : : : :
At 31 March 2003 RZFE=ZF=H=1—H : 400,150 : 235,828 : 1,553,280 : - : 2,189,258
At 31 March 2002 REZZZEZA=1—H : 965,583 : 338,747 : 1,949,122 : 39,517 : 3,202,069
Il Il Il Il Il
At 31 March 2003, the net book value of fixed assets of the A_FFZFEA=H AEBEUBEHER
Group held under finance leases amounted to $Nil (2002: A EEE IR FEAE AT T (CRE A
$201,772). 201,77270) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% — &% =4 = H =+ — H L4 (Dol (H)

13. GOODWILL 52

- The Group
| AL M
T
l $
! G
|
T
Cost A :
At 1 April 2002 and at 31 March 2003 A =_ZFZF _4FMNH —H R _FLX=F=H=+—H : 9,507,923
Accumulated amortisation Rt gy :
At 1 April 2002 R EE AR H —H : 316,931
Charge for the year A AP T 4 6 ! 950,792
|
|
At 31 March 2003 REFEE=ZAFE=H=1+—H : 1,267,723
Net book value MR T L :
At 31 March 2003 o EEZFEZA =+ —H | 8,240,200
At 31 March 2002 MR EE_HE=Z] =+ —H : 9,190,992
Il

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES A Fff J& 2 w] Z 4=

The Company

|
i AN H]
l T
: 2003 : 2002
| RBEAE | BB M
T T
l $ | $
: g6 ! G
: :
Unlisted shares, at cost I LTIy (AR : 4,000,000 : 4,000,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JHEE sz B Jeg 2 ) R I : 26,992,474 : 32,609,992
: 30,992,474 : 36,609,992
| |




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F% =4 =H =+—H IL4F & (LI os{H)
14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 7 [l & A v = BEE (48)

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2003 are as follows: MEoFEFEZFEZA=+—H > fEARZFBWT

Nominal value

| | | |
| | | |
: : : of issued and :
\ \ w paid up \
: : : ordinary/ :
: Place of : . registered |
I incorporation/ | Percentage of | share capital |
: registration and : equity attributable  EBERME
Name : operation . tothe Company |  WEMMEA/ | Principal activities
4T : A O LA 3 : A8 ) Al e : ik {5 4 : FEEH
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
: " Direct ' Indirect : |
: : Hi : IH] £ : :
ITE (BVI) Limited | TheBritish Virgin |, 100% | - | US$20,000(%7) |, Investment holding
- Islands : : : - BERK
: e el : : : :
| | | | |
ITE Smartcard Solutions : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $3,418,336 (7r) : Provision of smartcard
Limited - Eik : | | - systems and related services
BRAGARAH ! ! ! ! I and sales of smartcard
: : : : : related products
1 1 | 1 R B R BT B R LA R
: : : : : S e A B E
| | | | |
ITE Engineering Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 (7r) : Provision of electrical and
: His : : : : mechanical installation
: : : : : services and sales of electrical
I I | I I and mechanical installation
: : : : : related products
: : : : :%ﬁ%%ﬁ%lﬁ%%&%%%%
! ! ! ! I AT RAR B
l | | | l
ITE Investment Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 (7u) : Investment holding
: &its : : : : RE M
I I | I I
RF Tech Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 (o) : Manufacture and research of
- EiE : | : - smartcard system related
! ! ! ! I products
l | | | R R Rk R R
| | l | |
Rainbow Spirit Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 (7t) : Dormant
BEEEARAH | EE ! \ ! R
| | | | |
| | 1 | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% =% =4 =H =+— H L4 (A us{H)

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) #* K J&§ A ] = ## 25 (48)

' Nominal value
of issued and

| | |
| | | |
| | | |
\ \ w paid up \
i i . ordinary |
: Place of : . registered
| incorporation/ | Percentage of | share capital !
: registration and : equity attributable  EBARAE
Name : operation : to the Company : TR BA : Principal activities
i : R o LA S B : A5 ) i Al I : ik 4 : EXE3
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
: : Direct : Indirect : :
: : H#E : Gik:3 : :
Quesco Information Services : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 (o) : Dormant
Limited (Formerly known : ik : : : : E2E
as Nat-Id Limited) [ [ \ [ !
BB RS A IR A 7 | | | |
(Hi # Nat-Id Limited) : : : : :
| | | | |
ITE (China) Limited : The People’s : - : 100% : US$700,000 (£75) : Provision of smartcard systems
R R G A R A - Republic of China | | | - and related services
IR \ | | | BRI RR R R A BRI
| | | | |
| | | | |
Global Confidence Limited : The British Virgin : - : 100% : US$10 (% 7t) : Investment holding
i Islands | I | | BEEE R
: S 1 : : : :
| | | | |
Capital Ledger Limited : The British Virgin : - : 100% : US$54 (F70) : Investment holding
~ Islands | : | | B
: S 1 : : : :
| | | | |
Quesco Holdings Limited . Hong Kong : - 100% © $5,000,000(7t) | Investment holding
SERHE R A R A A : Hils : : : : RE M
| | | | |
Quesco Systems Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $6,500,000 (7) : Provision of information
SR ARG A R AR | it | | | | technology consultancy services
\ \ I \ | and commissioning of turnkey
: : : : : computer systems
: : : : : development projects
I | | \ | BRI TR B RS R A
| | } |  ROEBASMEEE
| | 1 | |
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest JRE WA BF i 2 ) R TE 88 A AT - o B G ZHE R
free and repayable on demand. 7 o



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

15. INVESTMENT SECURITIES #% % & 75

: The Group
! AL M
l :
: 2003 : 2002
| SEBREE 1 ZFFC
|
| |
! $ ! $
| | 5
Il |
|
Unlisted investment, at cost I LT E S (A : 2,830,189 | =
Less: Impairment loss B A R : (107,783) | -
: 2,722,406 : -
Il Il
16. TRADING SECURITIES = & & 3%
: The Group
l :
| 2003 : 2002
It == =X O R - ks
|
l ‘
! $ ! $
|
| 5 5
| |
| |
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, Z i T B4 #55 (%17 () \ \
at market value : 63,010 : 132,300
Il Il
17. INVENTORIES 7% &%
: The Group
\ AR 4
: x
| 2003 | 2002
| SEBREgE | ZERCF
|
| |
! $ ! $
| i 5
| |
|
Raw materials JE b R | 3,120,240 | 1,855,306
Finished goods B | 713,551 | 1,663,378
. 3,833,791 3,518,684

|

No inventories included in the above are carried at net
realisable value as at 31 March 2003 (2002: $Nil).

MREEREZHF =+ —H o RGN &R
BEFEIIAR (T A E) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% — &% =4 = H =+ — H L4 (Dol (H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES /& W ¢ H: ftb & W % sk

: The Group : The Company
| ASEE | AR ]
T T T T
: 2003 | 2002 : 2003 : 2002
I ZRF=EE 0 ZRTCF | ZFFEE | ZERCE
| | | |
| | | |
| $ | $ | $ | $
‘ 7! 7T ! g ! Tt
| | | |
Trade receivables N & 5 Rk : 13,013,600 : 16,960,562 : - : -
Other receivables H i B o B K : 632,247 : 3,355,389 : 189,645 : 144,996
Gross amount due from W% P 2 Bt ! ! ! !
| | | |
customers for service B #) LRI | | | |
contract work — note 20 M — Mtk 20 | 7,080,122 | 21,780,279 - =
Retention money receivables MU (R FE 4 : 2,967,105 : 1,695,505 : - : -
T T T T
| 23,693,074 |, 43,791,735 , 189,645 144,996
l l l l
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables, JARE Mg T Lt oA B 0 45 B Wi B ) R e B T
based on invoice date, with the following ageing analysis: RO HHRES AT AT
: The Group : The Company
| AL E | A ]
T T T T
: 2003 : 2002 : 2003 : 2002
L ZRR=Eg 0 ZRF0F | ZERFRER | ZRFCF
| | | |
| $ | $ $ | $
| T i T TG
Within 1 month — (A | 6,866,642 | 6,494,024 | - -
1 month to 3 months —Z={{ A : 2,098,081 : 5,686,346 : = : -
More than 3 months R =1 H ! ! ! !
| | | |
but less than 12 months B A+ 8 I 3,728,542 | 1,727,304 | = =
More than 1 year Bl —EADREE | | |
but less than 2 years : 320,335 : 3,051,988 : - : -
: 13,013,600 : 16,960,562 : = : =
| | | |




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

19. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES J& i}l 3Kk 2 ¥ 5t # H

: The Group : The Company
! N ! PN/
: x : x
| 2003 2002 | 2003 : 2002
LSRRERE 0 ZERCE ) ZFRF=H 0 R0
: : : :
i 5 5 5 ! s
! JT | Ji | i 7T
: 1 l :
Trade payables JEA 5 55 Bk | 2,504,992 | 4,426,395 | - =
Accrued charges TR 2 ! ! : :
and other payables T HAh A 2k 0E : 8,079,674 : 10,289,018 : 297,610 : 3,881,028
Gross amount due TEf % F 2 s | : : :
to customers for service AHITRHE : : : :
contract work — note 20 A — ftst2o I 368,164 | 291,906 | - -
Deferred maintenance income #EZE £ U A : 943,325 : 131,248 : - : -
Retention money payable JRE A1 £ B3 4 : 874,733 : = : - : -
x : i :
: 12,770,888 : 15,138,567 : 297,610 : 3,881,028
| 1 | |
Included in creditors and accrued charges are trade R A B e R T 8 P L B A B2 ) R B R
payables with the following ageing analysis: AT AR AT AN
T T
: The Group : The Company
| N | AR A
T T T T
: 2003 2002 |, 2003 | 2002
g | “FF-FE L CERER | ZERF A
: x : 1
| $ | s $ | $
: % T 7 TG
Within 1 month — AR : 977,255 : 2,703,187 : - : -
1 month to 3 months —ZE =@ H : 176,762 : 1,311,663 : - : -
More than 3 months =18 H ! ! ! !
but less than 12 months AR+ A : 1,230,563 : 411,545 : = : =
More than 1 year Bl —EEDREE | | |
but less than 2 years : 120,412 : - : - : -
: x w :
| 2,504,002 | 4,426,395 | - -
| | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% — &% =4 = H =+ — H L4 (Dol (H)

20. SERVICE CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS #1719 Z Ik % & 59

: The Group
| AL H
T T
: 2003 : 2002
b IRRE4 | ZEEBECH
: :
Cost incurred plus attributable B A AR T A1 T A : :
profit less foreseeable losses ol 2% AT L 2 e 1R | 26,248,803 38,396,917
Less: Progress billings Dok o AT R 1 (19,536,845) 1 (16,908,544)
| |
| |
: 6,711,958 : 21,488,373
Gross amount due from REW 5 2 HR#5 : :
customers for service A # AR RIEMAE : :
contract work — note 18 —[fF5E18 ! 7,080,122 | 21,780,279
Gross amount due to JEAT % B 2 Ik #s : :
customers for service CRoEREL @ik : |
contract work — note 19 — Btk | (368,164) | (291,906)
T T
: 6,711,958 : 21,488,373
1 1
21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS % H{f &
T
: The Group
| A B
T T
: 2003 : 2002
| “RE=EAE | _RE AR
T T
| $ $
: g6 ! JG
: :
Secured bank loans — note 28 AR ERAT B K — Bt k28 : 4,552,211 : 3,885,749
Bank overdraft — note 28 SRAT % 3 — M5k 28 : 1,852,810 : -
| 6,405,021 | 3,885,749
| |




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

22, LONG TERM BORROWINGS E 5 &

: The Group
| N
T T
| |
‘ 2003 ‘ 2002
I SRR ZERERTE
| |
T T
| |
| $ $
I 7[; I 7—5
| |
T T
Interest bearing borrowings AR 2 K : :
Secured bank loan — note 28 AR AT B K — Mt k28 ! 3,749,990 -
| |
Obligations under Rl L R A I |
finance leases : - : 50,314
1 |
| |
[ 3,749,990 | 50,314
| |
| |
Current portion R 3 3 : 1,666,680 : 50,314
Non-current portion I BV HA 6 173 : 2,083,310 : -
l l
(a)  The secured bank loan is repayable as follows: A AR ERAT R T B A B AR
|
|
|
|
I T
| 2003 : 2002
I SFRREUE | ZERRTE
| |
| [
| |
‘ $ $
[ JG | JG
| |
| |
Within one year —4ER : 1,666,680 : -
In the second year SEEE \ 1,666,680 | —
In the third to fifth years, & =4 %5 Fi 4F l |
inclusive : 416,630 : -
I I
\ 3,749,990 -
|
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) # % —

N
Z

-
Z

EZH=+—HILFEE (DL T E)

22, LONG TERM BORROWINGS (continued) & ¥if§ & ()

(b)  Obligations under finance leases are repayable as

il A R I 1 T S AR IR

follows:
: 2003 : 2002
: i < =0 : e 2
f T T T T T
:Present value: Interest : : Present value : Interest :
: of the : expenses : Total : of the : expenses : Total
| minimum | relatingto | minimum | minimum | relatingto | minimum
: lease : future |  lease : lease : future : lease
: payments : periods : payments : payments : periods : payments
: RIEHE : HH BRI : A : RIEHE : AE RSN : RIEHE
LOREBE 0 ZHEZH 0 HEEE 0 FERE o HEXE o AEEE
| | | 1 l l
l b b 5| 5 5 $
| o | yn | yn : T | Tt | Tt
T I I I I I
Within 1 year Iy | - - - 5034 | 189 51903
L L L | L L
23. SHARE CAPITAL & 7
: Number of shares : Amount
: Jie % : &#
1 1
| | $
| | %
Authorised: e A : :
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 4 % i {E 0. 01T [ % 4 fii : 2,000,000,000 : 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BB AR A | l
At 1 April 2002 Mo EEAEN A — A | 907,996,000 | 9,079,960
Repurchase of shares [ Hg JE A7 : (460,000) : (4,600)
1 1
At 31 March 2003 RoEE=H=HA=1—H | 907,536,000 | 9,075,360
| |

On 25 September 2002, the Company repurchased on the
Growth Enterprises Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited a total of 460,000 ordinary shares of $0.01
each in the share capital of the Company at an aggregate
cost of $45,162. The directors considered that the above
repurchase was made with a view to enhancing the net
assets and earnings per share of the Company. These shares
were subsequently cancelled and the issued share capital of
the Company was correspondingly reduced.

Mo ENHA A+ HHA > AT DL 45,162
TG 7 W 22 9T g [ A 2 ) Je AR e 4 i T 0.0 17T R A
3£460,000/% ° A< B EE R A Ak B Oy [0 1 B AE
P = AR T 2 P VA S B A o %S
BEy BT ah gl - AR A 7 2 B 84T B AR IR B A HE HI
W D 2 BOE S T (] Ry 2 T



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 =H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES [i# % # 51 31

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Scheme”) and a post-IPO share option scheme
(the “Post-IPO Scheme”) on 12 February 2001. In addition,
the Company adopted a 2002 share option scheme (the
“2002 Scheme”) on 8 August 2002, and the Pre-IPO
Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme were simultaneously
terminated. Upon termination of the Pre-IPO Scheme and
the Post-IPO Scheme, no further options may be offered
thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding options,
the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO
Scheme shall remain in force. The outstanding options
granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO
Scheme shall continue to be subject to the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme, respectively,
and the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the adoption of the 2002 Scheme will not in any event
affect the terms in respect of such outstanding options.

ARNFRZFE—FE A+ H A —IH LT <
U FBCREE ) (T vl i o)) B — T b i 4R 2
aHd) (T EmRs#]) - RoFF_HFAHNH - &
NERNFE AR ([ FF 45
# 1) Ffe] e A b BT AT ERE & BT AR EEE o £ B
il wh 3 K bR B AR AR > RS AR DR e R
AT AT B B HE o 1 ORAT B 2 A HE > S IEEE B
B A 2 o T ) B AR 0 R AT
DI B O A A 91 4 o T T LA A A SEAR
LTRSS A =5 R T AR R e R
L ¥ A A f B P HE 22 A AT MK o
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

WE_FEZ=F=H=1—HILFE (LIEEITsE)

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) & Bt #E 53 (55)

(a)

Pre-IPO Scheme and Post-IPO Scheme I 17 B &1 31 &% F v 4% 51 31

As mentioned above, the Pre-IPO Scheme and the

Post-IPO Scheme were terminated on 8 August

2002 and no further options may be offered

thereunder. Details of the outstanding share options

of these schemes during the year are as follows:

VLB R o BTl EE# K b AR ah # i =% AR
ANHNB &AL > PR AS € B M7 3547 I e > 3
N AT A 2 BRI AT

T T

i i i
I Number of share options I I I I
[ R B [ [ [ [
: T T T T : : :Price per share: Market value
: Outstanding | I I | Outstanding : : | to be paid on | per share at
,at1April | I I | at31March | | | exerciseof | date of grant
| 2002 | Granted | Exercised | Lapsed | 2003 | | options | of options
Name or category | RZZEZ4E | during | during | during | REFERZE | Period during which | f7HiEILHER: | HEHERE M ILHE
of participant | MWA—H : the year : the year : the year : ZH=1—H | Dategranted| options exercisable | AXMZ | HHAZ
SR A OER IR : TR P th : R R AT : TRAE 7 R : WARGE 1 BHEH IR 1743 I OBREK 0 R
\ \ \ \ \
T T T T
\ \ \ \ \
Pre-IPO Scheme | ! ! ! ! | | | |
gy [ [ [ [
Ll i : ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ : : :
Lau Hon Kwong, I 6,109,440 : - : - : - : 6,100,440 | 12 February | 21 August 2001to | $0.095 | N/A
Vincent/Director ‘ | | | | ‘ 2001 | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957C ! N i
BiEy,/ Ex ! | | | | e < S et & S IV fnt S !
| | —ga—pg |z = [ [
[ [ [ [ ZA+ZH  BRZF——4ZA+—H
George Roger Manho/ : 4,000,000 | - -1 - | 4,000,000 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 to : $0.095 : N/A
Director ‘ [ [ [ [ ‘ 2001 | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957C | Ll
Rl /HF | : : : : S S e < Sl YV vy = I |
| ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | CAtCR  ECEE AR |
Cheng Kwok Hung/ | 4,000,000 : - : - : - : 4,000,000 | 12 February | 21 August 2001 to | $0.095 | N/A
Director I ‘ ‘ ‘ : I 2001 | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957C | Nl
ST L - il
[ [ [ [ “AT= = =
Liu Hoi Wah/ ' 19,119,640 | - - - | 19,112,640 ' 12 February ! 21 August 2001 to | $0.095 N/A
Director : | | | | : 2001 ! 11 February 2011 | 0.0957% Sl
Bisd /% } | | i i | CERE CRE-EANC-R |
| ! ! ! ! | —ATZH  EZZ—HZAt-H :
Lee Peng Fei, | 1,760,000 ‘ > = L = L 1,760,000 | 12 February | 21 August 2001 to | §0.005 N/A
Allen/Director | : : : : | 2001 | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957C | N Ail
£S5 £ \ : ‘ ‘ ‘ | ZFF-F | ZEF-FAACTH \
! | | | | | CATCH O ESF—EC AT !
Employees I 35,157,920 | - - - | 35157,920 | 12 February ! 21 August 2001 to | $0.095 ! N/A
EA ! [ [ [ [ ‘ 2001 11 February 2011 | 0.0957 AR
‘ \ \ \ \ I —zz—f | 2Z-E) A -t-R ! :
: ! ! ! ! | OASH ESRESAtR |
| | | |
[ | | | | [ [ [ [
| 70,140,000 = | = = 70,140,000 | | | |
; : : : : ; ; ; ;
Post-IPO Scheme I I I I I I I I I
Lrigatdl I I I I I I I I I
| | | | | | | | |
Employees : 7,856,000 : - : - : 1,952,000 : 5,004,000 : 10 April : 10 April 2002 to : $0.455 : $0.455
3 : ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ : 2001 9 April 2004 04557C | 0.4557C
| ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | CERE ﬁ:i‘?iﬁlﬂlﬁﬂﬂ@ | |
| | | | | . MATH | ZEZNENARA |
Employees | 9,652,000 | - - | 1,216,000 | 8,436,000 | 11 October | 11 October 2002 to | $0.35 | $0.3
3= I | | | | I 2001 | 10 October 2004 | 0.357C | 0.37C
! [ [ [ [ S S e < St ik ol - [
[ \ \ [ [ L tHAt-R L ZEZmELALR :
Employees " 2,000,000 = | = - | 2,000,000 ' 28 December ' 1July2004t0 ! $0.195 $0.195
(3 : : : : : : 2001 : 31 December 2011 : 0.1957% : 01957
\ \ \ [ | [ ji’i?ﬁéﬁ [ *%?gﬁtﬁgﬁ§ \ \
[ [ [ I I (F=RZTAR *’4*%4“*)% [ [
I I I I I I I =t=8
t t t t t t t t t
I 19,508,000 | - - | 3,168,000 | 16,340,000 | | | |
I I I I I I I I I




(b) 2002 Scheme —FZF

For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

4

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
2002 Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group,
advisers and consultants, etc. The 2002 Scheme
became effective on 8 August 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2002 Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share option granted to a director, chief executive
or a substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of $5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

~ — e
2 25 F

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) Ji# i

E=A=+

- H IE4EBE (DA 51 (H)

EwtE ()

ANFVEAT ZRE ARG BIE R AL EE
A BB RS R S F R e R A - —FF
“AEEIR A ERE QS A FAES > K aEELE
PATHEF - AEHHAMR R - 5 RN SR
EF - BH%E o “RE EFHHIR _FF ENA
JNHBAERE > BROCEBOH B Soh » i R AR R
At HAERA R -

SUAT BT A R AT 2 5% BB HE B 47 (8 2
AN ) A AR ) R R A AR R ) 2 i A
R FCEEAT 2 M S A R 2 ) A BE AT AR
230% ° AL+ R AWK - AnF —FEF
) A i L A I S AR 3 3 o L AR T 3 o
Z I B o H B BR 2 A R IR E AT R 2
1% o AL o b IR 2 SRR i R BORK &
A ARALAE o

)5~ A7 BARER A R OR R AT A £k P 4%
W R HE - ZRTE S KB L IR AT AL v o B4
1] 2 )R SRR~ 24 W) 57 I AT = sl A ] £k
S 5% 2 B BB RE o AT A A 2 R R
17 2 0.1% B HARE (82 1 5 H O B e AR A% w130
T A > ZER RO B AR AL o
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZF=H=A=+

-H IE4EEE (DL TS {E)

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) & Bt #E 53 (55)

(b)

2002 Scheme (continued) &% —4E&H# (4)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer upon
payment of a nominal consideration of $1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry
date of the 2002 Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share option is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the share.

Details of the outstanding share options of the 2002

BT W B A W A 4R (B o I BORE R — - — K
W DUABB— 0 2 R T 12 I o i I
JBAHE 22 AT (0 IR B ok S > R — BRI A
B - MRS B R B AR R 2 H > SR
R R TR AR RS H e o

S BEHE 2 AT FEEAR T S E > AR T
GUBEE ¢ ()2 A B 0 76 W B b 8 B 2 i
i 5 Gi)A RBA e A A3 % i IR TR 28 5 H 2 5F
Pyt 5 QD) By B o

AR A R AT 2 T AR R IR E R R

Scheme during the year are as follows: mE
T T T T T
: Number of share options : : : :
| RS H | | | |
f T T T T 1 I | Price per share | Market value
" Outstanding ! I I I Qutstanding ' : : to be paid on : per share at
[ [ [
| at1April : : : : at 31 March | | | exerciseof | date of grant
I 2002 | Granted | Exercised | Lapsed | 2003 ! I : options : of options
[ . -
Name or category | RZ%FZE : during : during during : REBRZR : : Period during which | /FHEREMCHERY | EOREMERERURE
of participant | WMH—H | theyear | theyear | theyear | ZH=1—H | Dategranted | options exercisable : Y 53ip4 : HHZ
SERERL TR : AT : RERE : AR : TR R KA : AT : RiHM : TR o BREK 0 RGWE
‘ [ !
T T T T T T T | |
Employees : - : 3,500,000 : - : - : 3,500,000 : 9 August : 9 August 2003 to | $0.175 | $0.175
E& [ | | \ \ [ 2002 | 8 August 2012 : 01757 : 0.1757C
: | | | | | IERSE | ZERSEUIARE ‘
[ [ [ [ [ | AARE “E-CHENANR : :
Employee : - : 6,400,000 : - : - : 6,400,000 : 9 August : 9 February 2003 to | $0.175 | $0.175
& | | | | | | 2002 | 8 August 2012 : 0.1757C : 0.1757%
: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ I ZEECE | CREZECAAAE [
[ [ [ [ [ [ [
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ COAIME | CETEARAR :
| | | | | | | } }
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ | |
| = | 9,900,000 - = 9,900,000 | : ‘
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !




For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) J# B # 5t #) (%)

(b) 2002 Scheme (continued) &% —4E5H#] (&)

At 31 March 2003, the number of shares issuable ATERE=FE=H=+—H > biiaist# - EWig
under the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Post-IPO scheme FEE e R E AR ] B AT 2 B EE 4 Al A
and the 2002 Scheme was 70,140,000, 16,340,000 70,140,000 * 16,340,000/%29,900,000 > #J £ AN
and 9,900,000, respectively, which represented A HE BT R 1% o

approximately 11% in aggregate of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to T e NI R 452 T e A N AL BT B A I TR 2 4% 52
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. ZHER| -

25. RESERVES fi# i

(a) The Company #A< 2 #]

: : Retained :

: Share : profits/ :

I premium | (Accumulated |

: note (b) : losses) :

L e - REmaR,/ Total

| B L (b) | (RHEEH) | it

I I I

| $ $ $

: g ! ! JG

| | |
Balance at 1 April 2001 A EFR A — H &5 : 26,509,391 : 3,620,086 : 30,129,477
Bonus issue BATALIE : (4,490,680) : - : (4,490,680)
Shares issued upon exercise 4% A ! ! !

of share options under A7 I R : : :

share option scheme B 13 2 ety : 838,100 | - 838,100
Interim dividend declared AN BB TR K : : :

and paid during the year AT IR \ \ !

- note 9 —Mfitg | — | (2723,988) | (2,723,988)
Loss for the year AR | - (489,265) | (489,265)
At 31 March 2002 WEEFTAE=ZA=1T—H : 22,856,811 : 406,833 : 23,263,644
Repurchase of shares [ ] i P 47 : (40,562) : - : (40,562)
Loss for the year AU R | - (1,351,161) | (1,351,161)
Balance at 31 March 2003 i e S Y : : :

=+—H&% : 22,816,249 (944,328) | 21,871,921

Il
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #

25. RESERVES (continued) f#%# (%%)

(b)

(o)

(d)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 69(2) of the Company’s articles
of association and the Cayman Islands Companies
Law (2000 Revised), which provides that the share
premium account may be applied in making
distributions or paying dividends to members,
provided immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

The Group’s merger reserve represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation
completed on 18 November 2000 over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor.

At 31 March 2003, in the opinion of the directors,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share
premium account, net of accumulated losses,
amounted to $21,871,921 (2002: $23,263,644).

(b)

(c)

(d)

A=Z=+—HIEFE (M Thl{E)

e 173 i A B 2 P 2 AR O ) 2 AL AR A
HI%69(2)k » A RPHERE AR CEXE
TARBERTIR) Br B o W% 55 W SCBL e I i
A e T A 1) B SR 20 IR B S A IR S e
15 R BE A e S A IR B S 2 BB - AR
RIS A RE I AE HOW SEF R AR S B A

fig -

KL A HRERR - FEFTEL—H+
I\ H A B2 B o ALY o A 2 07 T (R
JR AR 2 i % A7 PB4 T . -

E_EREZFZA=1—H EFRLEAL
A AR A3IR T AN A BB et (B R
Tin {5 B AR B AR BR & R A E A IS
21,871,9217C ( =& & "4 : 23,263,644

JG)



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —F%F =4 = H =+ — H L4 (DL o (H)

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
A5 Bl < i B K M Rk

Acquisition of subsidiaries i I J&§ 2 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17§ $R&z M5t

T T
: 2003 : 2002
| —FF= | “FE L
T T
| $ | $
| G| JG
Net assets acquired: T U i TR E : |
| |
| |
Fixed assets I 52 ! = | 496,854
| |
Inventories 75 | = | 124,775
Trade and other receivables TR M T At R o B | - 8,945,655
Bank and cash balances SRAT I 4 A R | - 5,489,557
Bank loans and overdrafts SRAT B SE X \ = | (9,782,180)
Creditors and accrued charges JREAST B B M5 2 : = (3,150,763)
Obligations under finance leases Rl L S AR A : = (131,821)
| |
\ = 1,992,077
Goodwill arising on consolidation 5RO MR H IRF 7 A 2 p : - 9,507,923
Il |
| |
| — 11,500,000
| |
| |
Satisfied by: AP | |
| |
Cash paid BT B4 : - : 8,050,000
Balance of consideration JHLABLE A2 : :
payable in cash B R AE | - 3,450,000
T T
: - 11,500,000
| Il

ITE (Holdings) Limited ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% —%F%

26.

27,

28.

SEZH =4 H AR (LS s (E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
FR Bl iR (4)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) " i# ¥t & 2 & (41)

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in TR o S B J 2 R 2 B e B B Ik R AR
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries I3 M
| 2003 | 2002
L IRFEgE L ZERRTE
| |
I I
l $ $
! gt | JC
| |
I I
Cash consideration B4 RUE : - : (8,050,000)
Bank and cash balances SRAT R B4 A B | - 5,489,557
Bank loans and overdrafts acquired B it 8R4 T B3 R B 2 I - (9,782,180)
| |
| |
Net outflow of cash and cash A 5] W5 B A o ] 2 | |
equivalents in respect of the Bl T 25 EY) | w
acquisition of subsidiaries PINARRELK i} : ~ | (12,342,623)
L L
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME iR /K 15 # 5T &
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund ARG E 5 HAA R B 25— I AR (158
(“MPF”) scheme operated by an approved MPF trustee for RE D) wh#) - FZat ] b — AL AR SRR B R A A
its staff in Hong Kong. All eligible staff and the employer FHL o T & B A% B AR 3 349 28 4 08 i 1 A R
make mandatory contributions in compliance with the S A 1) 2 R e AR o
requirements of the Mandatory Provident fund Schemes
Ordinance.
The Group’s retirement costs charged to the income AR WA AR BETE A R 3 2 BRI BRUA £41,821,060
statement for the year were $1,821,060 (2002: $974,400). JC (ZFE 4 974,40070) ©
BANKING FACILITIES %847 @t &
At 31 March 2003 the Group had general banking facilities MNEFE=F=H=+—H » AEFERITH L Z
granted by banks to the extent of approximately $32 million — fi 4R 17 Al & 3L 4 32,000,0007C (2002 :
(2002: $31 million). The facilities were secured by the 31,000,0007C) ° & Z KU F -
following:
(a)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company; (a) AAFZEERER
(b)  personal guarantees executed by three directors of (b) ARF=LEFEZHALBER
the Company;
(¢)  personal guarantees executed by a director of one of (c) 7R H v — ] B i A 7] 35 = 2 AR NI R
the Company’s subsidiary; and e
(d) the Group’s fixed deposits of $13,511,368 (2002: (d A H13,511,3687C (2002 1 9,304,828

$9,394,828). J8) Z EMLERK -



For the year ended 31 March 2003 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29.

30.

31.

32.

33-

LEASE COMMITMENTS #i & & #&

At 31 March 2003, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of properties are payable as follows:

HE_TT

AE=H = H IR E (DA TSI E)

89

REOZRE=F=A=+—H » XEBBRIEHHEYE
Z AN ATl ] A AH B T 2R F AR S AT 2 B A Bk
IR -

x x
: 2003 : 2002
L IRRERE D ZEERECH
1 1
1 $ $
‘ JC ! JC
1 1
Within 1 year — R : 1,515,556 3,078,865
After 1 year but within 5 years —AEEELER | 106,064 1,253,932
: 1,621,620 : 4,332,797
Il Il

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES =4k £1 15

At 31 March 2003, the Company has undertaken to
guarantee certain banking facilities granted to two wholly-
owned subsidiaries to the extent of $32 million (2002: $31
million).

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY £ 4

The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 31
March 2003 to be Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited, a company
incorporated in The British Virgin Islands.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES #H ¥ #~

The comparative figures were audited by another firm of
certified public accountants in Hong Kong. Certain
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Hf %5 $ 3 4%

The financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors on 11 June 2003.

& 22 B 2 H]

SEZH=4—H o AR RS m
oy A 2 25 T SR AT A T 2 1 $32,000,000
: 31,000,0007T) ZIEMR ©

HERERRBAR FLZ=ZF=H =1T—HZE&ERA
) Ay U5 JE b 4 B S 5E A% 52 2 Rax-Comm  (BVI)
Limited °
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Five Year Summary

T 4P 22

90
| | | | |
: 2003 : 2002 : 2001 : 2000 : 1999
LOCEESRE 0 ZRRDE 0 ZRE-F 0 ZERRE 0 UULE
| | | | |
| | | | |
1 HK$ | HK$ | HK$ | HK$ | HKS$
: Ny : iy : iy : S : T
T T T T T
Results E : : : : :
| | | | |
| | | | |
Turnover BEE 77,301,806 1 62,848,428 | 45,669,195 | 16,535,431 | 4,712,933
| | | | |
| | | | |
(Loss) / Profit from operations W (ls1R) /Al ' (20,798,775)| 5,280,406 | 19,070,287 | 1,430,378 | (713,467)
Finance costs Al A A 1 (582,385)! (142,724) (7,862) 1 (4,466) =
| | | | |
| | | | |
(Loss) / Profit from ordinary FRBiar H % £ 5% : : : : :
activities before taxation Z(l1R),/ Al I (21,381,160)! 5,137,682 | 19,062,425 | 1,425,912 | (713,467)
Taxation BiIH : 167,399 : (303,802): (2,800,000): = : =
| | | | |
| | | | |
(Loss) / Profit attributable JE R ! ! ! ! !
| | | | |
to shareholders (&48) /i A i (21,213,761)1 4,833,880 | 16,262,425 | 1,425,912 | (713,467)
| | | | |
% | | | | |
B : cents ! cents ! cents ! cents ! cents
| | | | |
a | Al il Bl il il
g(f I I I I I
§ | | | | |
> Earnings per share Hi% (B#R) /BRI | | | | |
E Basic N w (2.34)1 0.53 | 2,01 | 0.36 | (0.18)
- Diluted e : (2.28), 0.50 | 199 | - =
z ! ! ! ! |
| | | | |
Assets and liabilities KERAE : : : : :
Fixed assets & B | 2,180,258 | 3,202,069 1,616,853 | 924,839 |
Goodwill kS | 8,240,200 1 9,190,992 | - =
|
Investment securities BEHES I 2,722,406 | = - -
Net current assets B G i | 24,058,247 | 43,904,763 |  5L725572 | 864,032 |
| | | | |
| | | | |
Total assets less current liabilities 42 & /& i il B) & & | 37,210,111 | 56,385,724 | 53,342,425 | 1,788,871 |
o Non-current liabilities I £ f | (2,083,310), - (3,203), (42,809)
S I I I I I
E | | | | |
3 ' 35,126,801 | 56,385,724 | 53,339,132 | 1,746,062 |
w | | | | |
f [ [ [ [ |
E Share capital Je A 9,075,360 | 9,079,960 | 4,490,680 | 3,000,000 |
< Reserves fittf | 26,051,441 | 47305764 | 48,848,452 (1,253,938)!
E T T T T |
3 | 35,126,801 | 56385724 , 53,339,132 , 1,746,062 |
E ] ] ] ] ]
2
i



Notice of Annual General Meeting B 3 % 4 k€ 8 &

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an annual general meeting
of the shareholders of ITE (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Tang Room I, 3/F., Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel, 20
Nathan Road, Kowloon on Wednesday, 16 July 2003 at 10:30 a.m.
for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and the auditors
for the year ended 31 March 2003;

2. To re-elect directors and authorise the board of directors to

fix directors’ remuneration;

3. To re-appoint auditors and authorise the board of directors

to fix the remuneration;

4. As special business, to consider and, if though fit, pass with
or without amendments the following resolutions as
ordinary resolutions;

(A) “THAT

(a)  subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution,
the exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in
the capital of the Company and to make and
grant offers, agreements and options
(including warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and other securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company) which would or might
require shares to be allotted be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall authorise the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period to make
and grant offers, agreements and options
(including warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and other securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company) which would or might
require shares to be allotted after the end of
the Relevant Period;
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(c)

(d)

the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue
(as hereinafter defined); or (ii) an issue of
shares upon the exercise of subscription
rights under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to the grantees as specified
in such scheme or similar arrangement of
shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company; or (iii) any issue of shares
pursuant to the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of
any existing warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and other securities of the Company
which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company; or
(iv) an issue of shares pursuant to any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of the dividend on shares of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company, shall not exceed
20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue
at the date of passing this Resolution and the
said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

(1) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general meeting
of the Company is required by any
applicable law or the articles of
association of the Company to be held;
and
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(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying
the authority given to the directors of
the Company by this Resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the
Company, or offer or issue of warrants,
options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed
by the directors of the Company to holders of
shares in the Company on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion to their
holdings of shares (subject to such exclusion
or other arrangements as the directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements, or
having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of, or the expense or delay
which may be involved in determining the
existence or extent of any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of, any jurisdiction applicable
to the Company, or any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange applicable to the
Company).”

(B) “THAT

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution,
the exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all powers of the Company to
repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange
on which the shares of the Company may be
listed and recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange
for this purpose, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and/or the
requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;
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©)

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company which the Company is
authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution
during the Relevant Period shall not exceed
10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue
at the date of the passing this Resolution and
the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

(¢)  for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

1) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(ii)) the expiration of the period within
which the next general meeting of the
Company is required by any applicable
law or the articles of association of the
Company to be held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying
the authority given to the directors of
the Company by this Resolution.”

“THAT, conditional upon the resolutions set out in
paragraphs 4A and 4B of the notice convening this
meeting being duly passed, the general mandate
granted to the directors of the Company and for the
time being in force to exercise the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to the
resolution set out in paragraph 4A of the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended
by the addition thereon of an amount representing
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to the resolution set
out in paragraph 4B of the notice convening this
meeting provided that such extended amount shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
at the date of passing of the said Resolution.”
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(D) “THAT, the number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted under the
share option scheme or any other option, scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire
shares of the Company be renewed to an aggregate
of 10 per cent. of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing of this Resolution.”

By order of the Board

ITE (Holdings) Limited
Liu Hoi Wah

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11 June 2003

Registered Office.
Century Yard

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town

Grand Cayman
British West Indies
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ITE (Holdings) Limited
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SEF R
Century Yard

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT

George Town

Grand Cayman
British West Indies

Head Office and Principal Place of Business.
21st Floor, Stelux House

698 Prince Edward Road East

San Po Kong

MRERYE T EE LT

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@)

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his behalf in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. A proxy need not to be a
member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power or
authority must be deposited with the Company’s registrar in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Registrars Limited, Shop 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy should not preclude a member
from attending and voting in person at the meeting and in such event, the
instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

A circular containing further details regarding ordinary resolution no. 4B
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange will be dispatched to the members of the Company together
with the annual report for the financial year ended 31 March 2003.
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Executive Directors

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent CEO
George Roger Manho COO
Cheng Kwok Hung CTO
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Lee Peng Fei, Allen JP, CBE
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Compliance Officer BT
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Authorised Representatives WERE
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited Fr s b 1 ME W SR AT A7 PR W)
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Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar U B 08 5 X R
and Transfer Office FHEHEFECARLH
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Registered Office sl A 30 =
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